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PROCEEDÏNGS
(On the record 11:30:20 a.m. )

THE COURT: Vüould you call the matter, please?

MS. MURPHY: Thank Yoü, Your Honor. Good

morníng. Calling State or I'm sorry, calling Adnan

Syed vs. State of Maryland, Case No. 199103042 through

046, Post-Conviction No. 10432. Kathleen Murphy for the

State.
THE COURT: And Mr. Brown?

MR. BROWN: Good morning, Your Honor. Justin

Brownr ofl behalf of Adnan Syed, who is seated to my right.

THE COURT: And Counsel, again, Ï want to thank

you for cooperation. I think we were last here on the

October 11-th, in accommodating the Court's schedule. And

we did, that dty, we did complete, at least two witnesses'

I believe. Is that correct?

MR. BROWN: That's correct, Your Honor'

THECOURT:Andwereallyhavethebalanceof
the day. So, we can figure out when we would like to take

a break for l-unch but. I was hoping we could get a little

bit. done before then and so I'm as flexible as you all

need the Court to be.

MR. BROWN: Your Honor, ñY int.ention is to call

Mr. Syed first. And then the second witness would be

Margaret Meade as our expert witness. And f tentat.ively
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told her to be here around 2t00, but certainly I can shoot

her a text message or somethírlg to change that.
THE COURT: And any other witnesses after?
MR. BROV\ÏN: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: OkaY. AnY, Ms. MurPhY?

MS. MURPHY: At thís point, the State is not

intending to cal-l any witnesses, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Any idea well-, and Mr.

Syed is probably your longest witness, I assume.

MR. BROWN: I would imagine.

THE COURT: Okay. Well- l-et's sort of see where

we are and then we can al-ways adjust. So, is the

Petítioner prepared to call its next witness then, Mr.

Brown?

MR. BROWN: Yes, Your Honor. I woul-d like to

before I call Mr. Syed, I just want to address one issue

that came up at the last hearing. Vüe f discussed, that

it was my understanding there was a stipulatíon regarding

a note'that was found in Ms. Gutierrez's file. And Ms.

Murphy initially objected, that she didn't recall- there

beíng a stipulation. But we have had the opportunity to

discuss it. And, in fact, there was an agreement that an

affidavit, she woul-d not object to its admissíon into

evidence.

So, I would l-ike to introduce it into evidence
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at that tíme and briefly explain to Your Honor what it is.

THE COURT: Alt ríght. And I missed the fírst

thing you said as to what it was. So maybe you'll

MR. BROI/üN: Your Honor, there was a note found

in Ms. GutierTez's fíl-e related to the alíbi witness, Asía

McClane. And, essentially what the note said was, "Asia

McClane saw hím ín the library at 3:00. Asía, boyfriend

saw him too." That's a handwritten note.

And I was able to determine that that note was

written by a law clerk to Ms. Gutierrez named, Ali

Cornedor (phonetic), who's now an attorney i-n Vrlashington

D.C. So I sent that note, alOng with some requests for a

jaì-l visit. to Mr. Cornedor, so that. he could authenticate

them. And say that, indeed, that was his handwriting.

That by the best of his recollection, he visited syed,

obtained that information, and that in the normal course

of being a law clerk, he would have relayed that

information t.o Ms. Gutierrez.
Sorlbelievewe'reonDefendant'sExhi-bitNo'

5. And I would move that int.o evidence at thi-s time, Your

Honor.

And, Ms. Murphy?

No objection, Your

So admitted then as

THE

MS.

THE

Exhibit No. 5

COURT:

MURPHY

COURT:

Honor.

Defendant' s
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(Whereupori¡ Defenset s

Exhibit No. 5 was admitted
into evidence. )

(Pause. )

THE COURT: And if I didn't say it then, this
woul-d be admi-tted then as Defendant's or Petitioner's
Exhibit No. 5t I'm sorry

MR. BROWN: Thank your Your Honor. And with
that taken care of, I woutd cal-l- Adnan Syed

THE COURT: If you'11 take the witness stand,

please.
ADNAN SYED

(A wj-tness produced on cal-l- by the Petitioner, first
having been duly sworn according to law, test.ifies as

f ol-lows: )

CLERK: I ask that you speak directly into the

mic. State your name for the record.
THE VüTTNESS: My name is Adnan SYed.

DIRECT EXAMINATÏON

BY MR. BROWN:

O Good morning, Mr. Syed.

A Good morning.

O And, again, please make sure if I maY

pul1 that even closer to him. Well, I guess that's as

good as it gets. Mr. Syed, where are you currently

ACCUSCRIBES
4L0- 466-2033

TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES
410-494-7015
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incarcerated?
A North Branch Correctional Instítution.
O And how long have You been there?

A ApproxímatelY four Years.

O How long have you been incarcerated total,
for the case that we're here for today?

A Almost t4 Years.

a And what is the sentence that you're

currently serving?

A Life Plus thirtY.
O f 'd like t.o take you back to the winter of

1"ggg, prior to your arrest, and how old were you then?

A Seventeen.

a Vüho did You live with?

A MY mother and father.

O And what are their names?

A My mother's name is Shamim Rahman and my

father's name is Masud Rahman-

a V{ere You ín school at t'he time?

A Yes.

O Where did You go to school?

A Vúoodl-awn High School-.

O And is it true that you \^/ere in the Honors

Program there?

A Yes.
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O

record?

A

O

anything?

A

O

February 28,

A

O

initially?

At that time, did you have any criminal

A At t.he Baltimore Cíty Detention Center.

O Were you able to get released on bail-?

A No.

O Vüere you represented by an attorney at your

bail- hearíng?

A Yes.

O Do you recall the name of that attorney?

A I believe it was Professor Douglas Colbert.

O Okay. And did there event.ually come a tíme

when you obtained a lawyer other than Professor Colbert to

represent you?

A Yes.

O And who was that other lawYer?

A Ms. Cristina Gutierrez.

No.

Ever been arrested, any juvenile offenses,

No.

Do you recall- that you were arrested on

1999?

Yes.

And do you remember where you were detained
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O To thì_ € best of your recol_lection, how did
Cristina Gr:tíerrez c €me to represent you?

A Well, when I was arrested,
that I was a part of - they raised money to
attorney. So, that r - how she was hired.
the community, they k:ired her.

O Okay - !Íere you personal_ly

selection process?

A No.

the community

hire an

The members of

O

time when she

A

O

Gutierre z ?

wit.h Ms.

interact

Had

was

No.

Do

invoJ-ved ín the

yçlu met with Ms. Gutierrez prior to the
of f icially reta j_ned?

yc>tr recall- when you first met Ms

A Yes,

o And r assume that was prior to the triar_;
is that correct?

A Yes.

o Do yo' remember where that meeting took
place?

A In the city jail visiting room.

a Okay. What was she like at that meeting?
A !üerr, r would characterize my interactions

Guti-errez in the same manner that f woul_d

with, I guess/ my teachers, or my coachesr or
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even my doctor. In the sense that, they were very much,

you know, the adult. And they were in charge. And

whatever they saíd, thatt s what it was. You know, I

depended on them. I trusted on them. So, I guess, that

would be the best hlay to describe my interactions wit.h Ms.

Gutierrez.
O Ts it faír to say that Ms. Gutierrez was

assertive?
A Yes.

O Did you feel at all intimidated by her?

A To an extent. I guess, the best way to

describe it was like the relationships I just described,

that whatever she said, that's what it \^/as'

O Okay. And you testified before, that you

this was the first time you'd ever been arrested, right?

A Yes.

O How much did you know about the whol-e

process of being charged with a crime?

A Ot.her than what I had seen on T'V' or read

in the books, I didnrt have any experience with it.

O Vrlhat, if anything, did you know about the

discovery process?

A I didn't know much of anything about it '

O What , if anything, did you know about' t'he

plea bargaining process?
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A I didn't - untíl the initial hearings

began and through conversations with other inmates over at

the city jaíJ-, I didn't know anything about the plea

bargaíning process.

O Did you understand suppression issues and

other evidentiary íssues?

A NO.

O Did you understand anything about jury

selection?
A Not in detail-.

O Did you know all the components of a jury

tríal ?

A NO.

O And did Ms. Gut'ierrez explain all of these

things to you?

A Not in anY detail.

O Now, I want to ask you a few questions

about the discovery in this case. Do you now know what I

mean when f use the word discoverY?

A Yes.

O Did Ms. Gut ierrez explain to you the

state, s evídence piece by piece, or at least what she

understood to be the State's evidence?

A Not in any detail.

O Did she exPlain to You
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MS.MURPHY:YourHonorrI'Ítgoíngtoobjectto

the leading nature of these questíons '

THE COURT:

BY MR. BROWN:

O What,

Sustained.

if anything, did Ms. Gutierrez

expJ-ain to you about' cellular telephone evidence?

AShedídn'treallygointodetailaboutany

aspectsofcellu].ar.Just,shedidmentionthatwhen
she wourd describe the case to me, when r would ask her'

shewoul-dgivemebit'sandpiecesinasense'Andshe
would tell me that , for example' they're tryíng to use

yourcellphonetopínpointwhereyouwereduringt'heday.
so that was the gist of her explanations to me' They were

not in any great detail'

O Did she attempt to explain to you what

other witnesses would testifY to?

MS.MURPHY:objectíonaStotheleadingnature

of the question.
THE COURT: Sustained'

BY MR. BROVüN:

a Vühat , Lf anything' did Ms' Gutierrez tell

you about other witnesses and how they might testify

against You?

Ashedidn,tgointogreatdetai]-wit.hme

aboutthetotalexLent,Iguess/ofwhatsheknewabout
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the prosecutor's case-

MS. MURPHY: Objection, Your Honor' As to what

she knew.

THE COURT: Sustaíned as to what she knew' 1

BY MR. BROVüN:

O Let me ask you this, did you feel like you

had a good grasp of the evidence against you?

A Not to a great extent '

ONow,YoUment'ionedthattherewasatleast'
one meeting with Ms. Gutierrez. Did there ever come a

time when other people from her office would vísit you?

A Yes-

OAndI'mgoingtoreadyouacoupleofnames
andlwanttoaskyouifyourecallthosepeopleand
whether they visíted you at all. Do you recall someone

named Michael Lewis?

A Yes.

O Who is Michael Lewis?

A He was one of, I guess, a paralegal or a

l-aw clerk or. I guess he was a lawyer who worked

underneath of I',m not even sure what the term is for

that.
a

(phonetic)?

A

Vlhat about Caleoby (phonetic) Farmamous

She was in the same caPacitY'
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O What about Rita Pazmíacous (phonetic) ?

A She was an attorney who worked wíth her or.

O Did you recal-l someone named Ali Cornedor?

A Yes.

O And did any of these people ever visít you

prior to your trial?
A Yes.

O Was there one in partícular, or was it the

sum of them, or was it atl of them? Vrfhat do you recall?

A They would come at dif ferent interval-s.

so, they would come indívidually, at different times.

a And what, if anYthing' was Your

understanding as to whether those people woul-d relay

information to Ms. Gutierrez?

A T was under the impression that whatever I

told them, they would pass it' along to her.

a Okay. Now, prior, t'here \^/ere numerous -- I

want to ask you a few questions about your court

proceedings but not your trial, but prior to the trial.
Do you recall any of those proceedings?

A Yes.

O And do you recall who represented you at

those proceedings?

A Yes.

A Vüho was that?
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A Ms. Gutierrez.

O Okay. Can you descri-be to the Court what

those proceedíngs were like?

A Well, it \^Ias always very crowded' The

courtroom was always ful-l of people. And ít was really

like emotionally charged atmosphere. And through the

fírst initial hearings, T was just realÌy trying to pay

attention to what was going on. And whenever I would get

back to the jail, I wou]d see on the news, news stories of

it, or someone wou]d show me a paper excuse me, stories

from the newspaper. And, I guess, the sense that I got

was that, initially and throughout the entire proceeding

was that, this wasn't really this was really a

situation where I would have to prove t'hat I didn't commit

this crime. This wasn't a situation wheLe I could just

lay back and see, we]l they have t.o prove that I did it.

Andrlguessrthatunderstandingcomesfrom'youknow'
when you watch T.v. or you watch the legal shows. It's

the sense of innocent until proven guitty' But my

impression from going to court and seeing all the media

coverage and in the newspaper or on T.V., that that was

just the imprêssion that stuck with me. That, I was going

to have prove that I didn't commit t.his crime. That in a

sense, I was already ít fett like r was just presumed

guilty by everyone.
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with
was ?

O Did you

your lawyer about

ever have the opportunity to speak

how strong the case against you

A Yes.

O And what, if anything, do you recal-l her

saying?

A Vüel-l-, I asked her and I asked some of her

legal people that work with her when they woul-d come to

visit me. I would ask them, you know, what are the

elements of the state's case? You know, do you guys know

what they're going to present against me? Essentially,

what is it that I,m facing? And, they never really went

into great detail about it. They would just kind of ask

me the questions and then that \^ras it. And t.o the extent

that I explained earlier, t.hat that was my relationship

with them. I mean, specifical-ly with Ms. Gutierrez that,

I trusted her. And I took it to be that, well, she

understood what was important, she woul-d come and ask me

what it was. And I may ask her a question or not, but

whatever her response was/ that's what it is. f mean, the

best way f can explain it is, is to be 17-year-old and go

visit your doctor. And your doctor asks yotl questions and

he tells you something, you listen to what they say. You

know, whatever they sâY, that's what it is-

O But, did you feel like you understood how
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strong the case was against you or wasn't agaínst you?

A I defínitely did not have confidence that,

unless I was abl-e to prove I didn't commit this crime,

because it seemed as if from what the State was saying at

these different hearíngs, that they were pinpointing'

like, âî exact time and an exact place where this murder

took place.

ODidtherecomeatimewhenMs.Gutierrez
sat down with you and explained your options with regards

t.o pleading guilty or going to trial?
A NO.

O Díd you ever raíse this issue with Ms '

Gutierre z ?

A Idid
THE COURT: You said You didn't?

THE WITNESS: Oh, ûo, I'ill sorry' Your Honor' I

said, I did. Yes sír, I did'
THE COURT: You díd'

THE WITNESS: Yes sir, I did'

BY MR. BROVüN:

O And how did You

that you,d never been arresLed for a críme. How did you

come to ask her about this íssue, t.his issue about

pleading guilty or proceeding to trial? How did you come

to ask her about it?
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A Wetl, when I \^tas housed in the city jaíl, a

l_ot of tímes I yoü know, other ínmates and myself we woul-d

talk about our cases. And my conversation with some older

guysrlwouldexplainthatrlreallydidn'thave
confidence in my case. Because, T fett that, the tíme

that they said or excuse me, the tíme that it seems the

staters theory was that this murder took place or the time

that they were alleging in the bits and pieces of

information that Ms. Gutierrez hlas giving me, it seemed

that I couldn't prove I was somewhere else or wi-th someone

el-se at that time. so, I fel-t that I was expressing I

dídn't. real-ly have conf idence in my case. And it \^tas

suggested to me that, well, You should ask your attorney'

did the state offer a plea deal of t you know, what' is the

possibirityofthat.Anditwasexplainedtomethat
that's pretty much common practice. That in most cases,

the Stat.e will
plea deal. So that's how the conversation came up about

the plea deal and the ídea came to me'

a Okay. Do you know approximately when t'his

conversation took P1ace?

A It was Prior t'o the f irst trial '

aAndwhatexactlydidyouaskMs.Gutierrez
to do?

A Well, I asked Ms. Gutíerrez if t'he St'ate
25
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offered a plea deal. She said no. My next question to

was to her, could she speak to the State's Attorney or

request some type of a plea. And I explained t.o her that

I didn't really have confidence that I'd be abl-e to prove

I was somewhere else when the murder take place and when

t.he State's theory that the murder took place, from the

information that we were getting. So that's what I asked

her.

O And how did she respond to your request?

A She responded in the affirmative. And I

took it to mean that, okay, she was going to ask her.

O And did she ever follow-uP on this?

A Well, frY next time that I saw her, I asked

her, what was the end resul-t? Did she get a chance to

speak to the Stat.e's Attorney? And her'response was,

..Theytre not offering you a plea deal." so, when she said

that, that's what it was. There was nothing else for me

to ask her after that, because I belieíed that she went

and spoke to the state's Attorney, the state's Attorney

said ror and that's what it. was. vühatever she said, I

mean, that's what it was. I didn't feel the need to

question her about it.. I took her for her word'

O Okay. And do you recall, do you recall how

your first trial ended?

A It ended in a mistrial.
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O And do you recal-l- why it ended in a

mistrial-?
A Yes.

O Vühy was t.hat?

A Well, Judge Quarles had called Ms.

Gutierrez a liar during an exchange and Christopher Flohr

was sitting behínd us. He made reference to Ms. Gutíerrez

about it and Judge Quarl-es also st.ated that he received

the letter from the juror saying that they heard him call

her a liar in court.

O [¡[ere you ab]-e to hear him call- her a liar?
' A I was able to hear it, Yes-

0 What. was that like to hear the judge call

your client Your attorneY a liar?

A I mean, it h/as I didn't really have a

I don't even know what to say. I mean, I didn't

just kind of shocking to hear that.

ODoyoureca].lwhetherthemistria]-occurred
before or after Jay vüilds (phonetic) testified?

THE COURT: I'm sorry, after who testified?

MR. BROWN: I said, does he recall whether the

mistríal occurred before or after Jay Vrlilds testified

THE COURT: JaY Vüilds -

MR. BROI/üN: -- testified ín your trial, in that

first trial-?
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THE VüITNESS: I know that he had testified
extensívely. I don't know if his testimony I can't
remember I don't recall if hís testimony hras complete

at thís time.
BY MR. BROVüN:

O And ís it fair t.o say that Jay Vüilds was

the State's primary witness against you?

A I bel-íeve now that I'm able to say that the

answer is yes. And I was able to hear the State's entire
openíng arguments. And specif ically, ât t.hat time when

they pinpointed that at 2236 P.m., Ï made a phone call to

Jay Vlilds to come pick me up in the Best Buy parking l-ot'

and I showed him the body of Hae Lee in the trunk of the

car.

a Now, after that mistrial, do you recal-l how

long it was until your second trial- started?

A I believe it was several weeks. It wasn't

long at. all.

O And during that i-nterim, did you have an

opportunity to speak to Ms. Gut.ierrez?

A Yes.

O And did You, at any time, raise the issue

of a plea?

A Yes.

O Can you describe to the Court what
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happened?

A Well-, ãL this point, ßY fear was even

greater. And it was confirmed because, once again, back

to the orígínal point, I felt that I needed to prove t.hat

I didn't commit this crime. And I fel-t the best

opportunity t.o do that was to be able to prove at the time

they said the murder was committed, I was somewhere else

or with someone else. And absent of that, I didn't

believe that I would prevail at trial-. And I had a pretty

good opportunity of seeing all of the state's case, so my

fears were confirmed earlier. And my request. to her was/

I guess, based on an even greater fear that I woul-dn't. be

able to prevail at trial.

a Can you tell- me though, what did you tell

her with or what, if anything, did you tell her about

the pleas?

A Vüel}, I expressed to Ms. Gutierrez again

that, I really didn't have confidence in the case because

now, my fears are confirmed that, that's essentially to me

what it came down to. The perception in my mind was' this

is what t.his case comes down to. where was I at this

time. so, I asked Ms. Gutierrez once again, do you think

the State will offer a deal? Could you talk to them

again?

O And, did she resPond?
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A She responded that, they're not offering

you a deal-.

a I'm going to turn your attentíon to

somebody named, Asía McClane. Do you know Asia McClane?

A I went to school with her'

O And how long did you know her at school-?

Ashewasthegírlfriendofafriendofmine,
who I had went to school with since middle school.

O And what's that Person's name?

A Hís name is Justin Adger (phonetic) '

O Justin Adger?

A Yes, sír.

a OkaY. Did You did You know her well?

Alonlyknewherthroughhim.Vüehadafew
classes together. But other than that, I only knew her

through hím.

O Were You aware of whether she had a

boyfriend?
A VüelI, when I knew her, she was his

boyfriend.Iknewtheyhadbrokenup.So,Ididnotknow
at the time whether she had a boyfriend or not.

Ookay.Vüereyouawareofwhethersheh/asa
good student. or not?

A V{e were in a lot some of the same

classes together. .so, I belíeve, that she was a pretty
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good student.

O

some

And I belíeve You mentioned

type of Honors Program at the

before that you

school-; is thath/ere l-n

correct?
A .Yeah. It was a magnet Program'

O Were you aware of whether she was also in

that program?

A She was in some of the classes' So, I

believe she may or may not have been. But, T know we were

in a lot but \^re \^¡ere in a few of the same classes

together.
O And, did there come a time when she

contacted you followíng your arrest?

A Yes.

MR. BROVüN: Your Honor, mâY I approach the

witnes s ?

THE COURT: You may'

(Whereupon, Counsel approached the witness stand

and the following ensued: )

BY MR. BROVüN:

a I'm going to show you whaL's been marked as

Defendant's Exhibit 6. Do you recognize that document?

A Yes.

aCanyoudescribefortheCourtwhatthis
is?
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A It's the letter I received from Asia

McClane, probably within a few days after I was arrested.

O And do You, do you need a chance to review

that l-etter or do You recall-?

A I recall it.
MR. BROVIN: Your Honor, I'd offer into evidence

Defendant's Exhibit No. 6.

THE COURT: AnY objection, Ms. MurPhY?

MS. MURPHY: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So admitted then as Defendant's

Exhíbit No. 6.

(Whereupon, Defense's

Exhibit No. 6 was admitted

into evidence. )

BY MR. BROWN:

a Can You exPlain to the Court what

ímpression this letter had upon you?

A I think that's the second l-ett'er'

O OkaY. Let me let's do this' Do You

recall- that there was do you recall- how many letters
you receíved from Asia McCl-ane?

A I received two letters from her back t'o

back.

O T want to show you what's been marked as

Defendant' s Exhibit No. 1 . Do you recognize Defendant's
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Exhibít No . -1?

A Yes.

O Vühat' s Def endant' s Exhíbit No ' 7 ?

A It's the first letter that she wrote me

It's dated March 7, Iggg and I was arrested the day

before, February 28, Ig9g. so, I probably received it

maybetwoorthreedaysafterlh/asarrested.
MR.BROWN:YourHonorrlwoul-dliketomove

Defendant's Exhibit No. 7 into evidence'

THE COURT: And again, âñY objection' Ms'

Murphy?

MS. MURPHY:

THE COURT:

No, Your Honor.

So admitted thenr âs Defense Bxhibit

BY MR. BROWN

O

No. 'l

(VühereuPon, Defense' s

Bxhibit No. 7 was admitted

into evidence. )

,Sor do you recaII chronologically which

let.ter You received first?

A f received Exhibit No' 7 first'' It's

dated, March !, 1999.

aAnddoyoureca]-lwhatimpressionthese
Ietters had on You?

AVrlel-l'oncelwasarrested'Irealizedthat



1

2

3

4

tr.

6

7

8

9

10

11

L2

l3
L4

15

L6

I1

18

I9

20

21,

22

23

24

25

21
ADNAN SYED VS. STATE OF MARYLAND

October 25 , 2012 BEFORE ,JUDGE MARTIN P. VüELCH

ACCUSCRTBES TRANSCRIPTION SERVTCES
410- 466-2033 41"0*494-101'5

it was very important for me to be able to recount exactly
what happened that day. And, when I receíved these

l-etters, it kind of fortified the memory that I had of
after school- that day. School ended at 2:15, that after
school that, d.y, I went to the publíc tibrary. And I
stayed there between approximately 2:40 to 3:00, and then

I went to track practice. So, these letters essentially,
they verífy in my mind what my memory \^/as of that day.

a Were you surprísed to receive these

letters ?

A I was surpri-sed to received these J-etters -

And in them, she stressed several- things to me. She

stressed number one, that she was very clear and concise

about remembering that, day. And she was very emphatic

about being able to help me out. She was emphatic about,

she provided me with her phone number, her, I believe, her

mother or her grandmot.her's phone number. She requested

me to ask my att.orney to contact her, so that she coul-d

come forward wit.h t.his ínformation. And, I mean, she

and, I guess, what surprised me in a sense was that, she

wrote me back to back. And she told me that she also took

it upon hersel-f to visit my family and she spoke t'o my

mother. And, you know, she expressed these thíngs to my

mother. So, yeah.

O And atl that's in those Letters?
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A AtI of this contained in these letters.

O Tf I could turn your attention to Exhibit

No. 6, ís there a mention of someone named, Justin Adger?

A Oh, Yêsr sir. There is.

O Is that the same Justj-n Adger who you

mentioned before in your testimony?

A Yes.

O And, again, who is Justin Adger?

A He I^Ias a friend of mine, that I had known

since rniddle school-

O And just to be absolutely cl-ear, did those

letters come to you before the trial or after the trial?

A f received these l-etters within the first

week of being arrested. So that was way prior before the

trial.
O And did you solicit these letters in any

way?

A Not at al-l.

A Is what she said, in these l-etters about

January 13th true?

A I it's absolutelY true. She one of

the things t.hat real1y stuck out in my mind, was that. she

stated that she spoke to the librarian who stated that

they had security cameras. And one of the things that she

mentíoned was that., thatf s something that we should look
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ât, trying to secure those or retríeve the security camera

O TeIl ITIêr and not what these letters sâY,

but tell me what your own recol-l-ection is from that date

of January 13th, with regard to Asia McClane?

A I would say my wel-l-, flY recollection is

THE COURT: And, I'm sorry, January 13th is the

date of the letter or?

MR. BROWN: Your Honor, that's the date when Ms.

McCl-ane ran into Mr. Syed at the library. ft's the date

when the murder took Place.
THE COURT: OkaY.

THE WITNESS: I was in the library and Asia

McCl-ane, she came over and there were two other guys with

her. And she introduced them as her boyfriend and her

boyfriend's best friend. So, we sat, and we talked for a

l-íttle while about different t.hings, like, college and

what's going on in high school-. You know, thíngs like

that. And, I would say the Lwo things particularly t.hat

really stuck out in my mind, and she did mention them

excuse fiter she did mention them -- excuse me. The one

thing that stuck out in mind was the fact that, there were

two snow days immediately after this day. And she

mentioned t.hat in the letter. And, so, that would be

January 14th and 15th. Vüe didn't have school t.hose two
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days. And that stuck out in my mind was because, when I

met her boyfriend, I had put ín my head that, well, when I

see Justin tomorrow in school, You know, I'm just going to

let him know, you know, I met Asía's boyfríend. He seemed

like a pretty nice guy. 'Cause I just felt like that was

something, you know, he you know, he may want to know.

But I d.idn, t have a chance to tel-l him this until the

following Monday because we had two snow days

O Do you recall what you were doing at the

Iibrary at that tíme?

A I'm fairly certain that I was accessing my

e-maiI from the librarY.

O Okay. And why, why had you not told anyone

this before about the librarY?
A WelI, prior to me being arrested, I had

absol-utely no idea that f would need to have to recount

every single aspect of my day that'day. I didn't know

t.hat I was going to be charged with her murder. I had

absolutely nothing to do with her murder. so, up until

the day I was arrested, in my conversations wit.h the

detectives or with anyone for t'hat matter, I never went

into great extent or fel-t t.he need to, because I didn't'

believe I needed to provide an alibi. I didn't know that

I was going to be charged with her murder'

O And is it correct that, to the best of your
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recoll-ection, the victim's body was not found until nearly

a month later, after this date, this January 13th date?

A I believe it was February 9th' 1999.

0 And is it correct that you were arrested on

February 28th, L999?

A Yes.

O And after receivíng the letters from Ms.

McCl-ane, did you notify Crístj-na Gutierrez?

A I immediatelY notífíed her.

O How did You notifY her?

A VüelI, it would have been, the nexL time

that f saw her on a visit, I showed her the two fetters

and she read t.hem. And I asked her, coul-d she please do

t.wo things, contact Asia McClane, and try to go to the

library to retrieve whatever security footage was there.

O And do you recall whether this conversati-on

with Ms. Gutierrez took place prior to the start of the

t rial ?

A It took place very much prior to the start

of the first trial.

O Do you we mentioned this name before '

I'm gong to run it by you again, Al-i Cornedor- Do you

recal-I who he was?

A Yes. He \^¡as one of Ms. Gutierrez' s l-aw

I don't. know. He hlas a lawyer, I think. So, I donf t know
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if that's cal-l-ed a l-aw cl-erk. But he worked for her and

he would come talk to me about t.he case.

O And do you recall meetíng with him?

A Yes.

a And did there come a time when you told him

about Asia McClane?

A Yes.

O And, just very briefly, because hle've been

over it. But what did you tel-l hím about Asia McCl-ane?

A Well, I told him that T remembered being in
the public library with her that day from right after
school, which is about 2zI5 to around 2240, 2:45'ish,
close to three.

O And, again, when you spoke to hilnr was it
your underst.andíng that that information would eventually

be conveyed to Ms. Gutierrez?

A True. And I specifically pointed out the

twö things about thisr the surveil-lance cameras. And I

also asked him if he cou.l-d please, we1Ì, pass along that,

about the e-mail access. And I gave him my e-mail address

and the password.

O Okay. And did Ms. Gutierrez, or anybody

working for her, working under her, ever get back to you

about Asia McCl-ane?

A Subsequent to the time when I mentioned
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this to Ms. Gutierrezt the next visít, I immedíately asked

her, what did you speak to Asia McClane? What did she

have to say? Vüere you abl-e to secure the surveillance

cameras ?

a And how did she resPond?

A Her response was, I looked into it and

nothing came of it.

O Did you Press her on this?
A Inlhen I asked her, and her response was

that, I asked her again, well, Ms. Gutierrez, did you go

speak to her? You know, díd they say that I just began

ín my ¡nind to try to undersLand what she meant, but she

moved onto another subject. And T understand no\^I, it

Iooks one wâ1zr but to be a 17-year-ol-d kid in this type of

situation, whatever your lawyer tells Your that's what it

is.
O And after you were told by Ms. Gutierrez

that nothing came of it, which is what you just testified

to. Did this what , íf âny, affect did this have about

how you felt about the strength of the case?

A Vüel-I, âs I explained before about the pJ-ea

deal-, thís \^/as what precipitated my fear, that I wouldn't

be abl-e to prove where I was at thís time. I didn' t know

the exact timing at the time, but I would find out at the

first trial. But from the pieces and tidbits of
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informatíon that was gleamed from the hearíngs that r^¡e had

and some of the thíngs, Ms. Gutierrez, T understood that.
That was the most crucial- time during the dty, right after
school-. People had seen me in school. People had seen

Hae Lee in school- afterwards. People testifíed that they

saw her leaving by hersel-f. People testifíed that they

saw me after school- by myself. That this tíming was the

most crucial- time between 2:I5 and come to find out l-ater

2236 p.m. It's the window of 21, minutes, that was the

most. crucíal time. If I was going to prove I dídn't
commit this crime, t.hat was where it was. My case lived
and died in those 2I minutes, that's it. There \^/as

nothing else to you know, that's what it was.

So, when Ms. Gutierrez tol-d me t.hat I looked

into it and nothing came of it, I took that into mean

that/ now I have no way to prove I was somewhere else at

this ti-me. So that precípitated my fear and the

conversations about I didn't have confidence in my case

at all then, because that's where the case l-ived and died

at. At that time, right then and there.

a Okay. And what, if any, affect did this
have on your willingness to take a plea?

A VrÏell-, âL that time, particularly after the

first trial when I heard the for the most part, the

State's ent.ire theory. The State's entire case was that,
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if I couldn't prove right then and there, öx at that
particular time I was some place else, other than what the

State's theory was placing me, then I wasn't goíng to
prevail at trial. And I had come to learn that with a

first-degree murder convict.ion comes a life sentence. So

in my mind it. was, take a lífe sentence or take something

else. It would loe no difference if , like, a doctor said

if you have an infection in your leg, I woul-d cut your feg

off of you're going to die. Tt was never in mind that

take a plea deal or go home. No, it was take a plea deal

and go to prison for X amount of years or don't take a

plea deal-, and lose at trial-, and spend the rest of my

life in príson. I had absolutely no confidence that I

would prevail once Ms. Gutierrez indicated to me t.hat the

alibi that I provided to her, it dídn't pan out. So there

\^/as noLhing else to do.

O Okay. And you mentioned a specific time

and that time is 2236.

A Yes.

O And that's on JanuarY 13, 1999?

A Yes.

a How did you l-earn that that was the time

when the murder supposedly took place?

A Vüel-1, specifícally in opening statements,

t.he prosecution that was their theory. That at 2236
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p.m., I \^/as in a Best Buy parking lot, on the phone,

calling Jay Wilds. Telling him, come pick me up. You

know, Í, I, f I f I kílJ-ed Hae Lee. And so that was it

was the exact same time. And, I guess, the well,

d.uring trial, they had a board with the cell phone records

on it and they índicated 2:36 p.m. That hlas when a call

was made. So that's how I knew that was the exact time'

O And was there any wít'ness testimony

supporting this?
AAsfarasthe(ínaudibfe),nooneplacesme

with Jay vüiJ-ds' word is the only thing that places lrer

at t.his Best. Buy parking lot, at 2236 p'm' No

surveillance footage showed me at 2:36 p.m. in the Best

Buyparkinglot.There'snophonerecordofmemakinga
calltothece]-lphonefromtheBestBuyparkinglot.
It's in the middl-e of the holiday season, 2236 p.m., broad

daylight., somehow I'm able to kitl Hae Lee in the car' get

her body to the trunk of a cart in broad daylight, in the

middle of t.he parking lot.. So, as far as this information

right here, I think it's crucial, because that makes our

case right there.

a And I just want' to be absolutel-y clear' I

asked you was, there any testimony about this time 2:36'

DidJayVüitdstestifyconsistentwiththis?
A Oh, Yes, sír'
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O Okay. And once this became apparent to
you, did you have any further conversations with Ms.

Gutierrez about it?
A After the fírst trial, I specifically asked

her about the pJ-ea deal situation. And wellr âs I
stated earlier, I asked her once again about the plea deal-

situation and her response was, "They're not offering you

a deal-. "
O OkaY-

THE COURT: I'm sorry. And the response was?

THE VüITNESS: Her response was, "They're not

offering you a deal. "
BY MR. BROWN:

O And for the sake of clarity, was this a

conversation that took place between the mistrial and the

second trial?
A Yes, sir.

A And based on your being present at the

second trial-, was the time 2236 consistent in the second

trial with what it. was in the first trial-?

A I mean, it was absolute. The cell- phone

records were presented l-ike an exact science. As if to

say, Jay WiJ-ds saíd the murder was committed at this time.

The cell phone records prove it. So I knew that that was

t.he exact t.ime. If I couldn't prove ít at that t.ime no
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one puts me with Jay Wilds anywhere near 2t36 p.m. No one

puts me anywhere near Hae Lee at 2:36 p.m. Tt's just hís

word versus nothíng. And that's why T felt it hras so

crucial- about her contacting Asia McCl-ane. So when she

contacted so when she impressed upon me that she spoke

to her and nothing came of it, that's what led to me, just

completely having lack of faith in my defense. Because I
real-ized that nothing it didn't matter if someone came

to court and said, I was a good son or I went to the

mosque t of I was a good student t ot a good athl-ete. None

of thís stuff mattered.

Because no one came to court., not one single
person, you can look at the transcript, and said they

witnessed me threat.ening Hae Lee, they witnessed me

physically abusing her, emoLionally abusing her. Hae Lee

no one testifíed that Hae Lee expressed to them that
she was afraid of me. Except for Jay Wilds, no one said

anything about us being anything but friends. So' none of
that ot.her stuf f mattered about , if I was a good son.

This whole case was built. could I prove that I was

somewhere else when Jay Vüilds saíd I was here. And if I
couldn't. do that, I had no confidence in the case

whatsoever.

O Okay. How was your relationshíp with Ms.

Gutierrez throughout the second trial?

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRIPTION SERV]CES
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A I mean, I trusted her as I did in the first
trial. I trusted her word completely. I didn't have any

reason to doubt up to that point.

a Did she tell- you what her strategy was ín
the second trial-?

A Absolutely not.

O Did you keep her on and, in factr Voü

were convicted, correct?
A Correct..

O Did you keep her on for your sentencing?

A No.

O Vühy not ?

A Wel-l, after I was convicted, I had made

mention to Rabia Chaudry about Asia McCIane. And I had

made mention t.o her that, you know, I wish there was some

way that I coul-d of proved that f was somewhere el-se at
this time. And I told her that, well, Ms. Gutierrez
checkeà into it and obviously it didn't pan out. So,

Rabia request.ed that I send her the informatíon. She was

a law student at the time.
So, I sent her the j-nformation. These two

these letters well, copies of these letters t oî these

l-etters. And she, in turn, contacted Asia McClane. And

Asia McClane informed her that she was never contacLed.

No one ever reached out to her. No one ever talked to

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES
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her. No one ever cal-l-ed her. Nothing-
I

O Were You surPrised to hear this?

A I hlas completely surprised. I was shocked'

And It in turn, Rabia chaudry, she well, Asia Mcc]ane

met Rabia Chaudry and she sígned an affidavit. So, Rabia

chaudry sen't me a copy of it. so, this is I found all

of this information out at once. And I immediately cal-l-ed

Ms. Gutierrez from the city jair phone. And it was a

short conversation, because the jaì-I phones, they only

last for tike f ive or ten minut'es '

Andthefirstthingthatfaskedherwas/Ms.
Gut.ierrez and Ï read through the affidavit and I '

reminded her about the lettprs ' And I said' Ms '

Gutierrez, did you speak to her? Did you talk to her?

Did you contact her? And she said, ño' And I was very

upset at that point. Because I said, Ms. GutierTez' it's

the exact same time. And I asked her, did she ever try to

go to the library to secure t.he video footage? And she

said, flo. So, I became very upset with her' And T asked

her, was there anything we can do at this point? And she

saidr ño. Vüe need to focus on the appeal '

O Okay- I'm going to take you through this

step-by-step.But,didtherecomeatimewhenyou
terminated Ms. Gutierrez' s representation?

AWell,Ididafterthatconversation,I
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realized that I didn't trust Ms. Gutierrez. I didn't

believe she had my best interests at heart. And, at the

end of the conversation, when she was mentioning about the

appeal, she said that, she would need an extra, I think it

was forty or fifty-thousand dollars for the appeal.

Now, at that point, I had come to realíze that,

between t.he community and my family, they had gave her

almost 1OO or about $100,000' So, in that short brief

conversat.ion that we had, towards the end' I said' Ms '

Gutierrez, what did you do wíth the $100,000? There was

no forensic experLs. There \^¡as no psychology expert's ' I

just asked her, what did you do with the $100,000 that' you

need $50r 000, and the only person I asked you to contact

was Asia McClane? There was ño¡ the only physical

evidence found on this case on Hae Lee's body was two hair

samples that the sLate's expert said didn't match me ' so

there was no need for a forensic expert or none of t'hat

other stuf f . what in the world did she do wit'h $100'000

that she needed another $50' 000?

BuL, to make a l-ong story short' I decided to

discharge her for two particular reasons' Number one' Ï

fe}tsheWasdishonestwíthmeaboutthewholeAsía
McCIane situation. I felt that she lied to me' And then

I felt that she was just being dishonest about the money'

aokay.Andwereyousuccessfulinobtaining25
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a new lawyer for sentencing?

A Yes. f was appointed a Ms- Charles Dorsey

Mr. Charles Dorsey.

O And you mentioned the name of Rabia

Chaudry.

A Yes.

O Correct. And she testified earl-ier in this

post-conviction, correct?

A Yes.

O And you know that she's an attorney now?

A Right.

O At that time, what was your relationship

l-ike wit.h Ms. ChaudrY?

Alwasclosefriendswithherbrother,Saad
(phonetic) . I didn't realJ.y I only knew her as his

sister.
a OkaY.

A As his older sister '

O And can you just provide a description of

how, how you came to speak to Ms. chaudry about the topic

of Asia McClane?

Atüellrsubsequenttotheconviction,Ihad

called saad,s mother, and I guess .she was there. And so

we were talking about the case. And that's when I

broached t.he subject of Asia Mcclane. And when I
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expressed to her that Ms. Gutierrez intimated to me that,

you know, it didn't pan out. And she said, weLl, leL me

check into ít. So T sent her the information. And she,

in turn, reached out to Asía McCl-ane and Asia McCIane

i-nformed her that no one had ever contacted her. And then

she agreed to she met with Rabia to get it notarized,

to get the affidavit notarized. And then she sent the

and then Rabia Chaudry sent the information to me. And Il

in turn, forwarded it to Ms. Gutierrez.

MR. BROWN: Your Honor, could I retríeve

Petitioner's Exhibit No. 2?

THE COURT: CertainlY.

MR. BROWN: Is the affidavit' I'I1 show you

whatf s aÌready been introduced into evidence âsr it says

Defendant's Exhibit No. 2 0n that. vühat is that?

THE WITNESS: That's the affidavit that Asia

McCIane met with Rabia and they went and signed- And then

Rabj-a ChaudrY sent it to me.

MR. BROWN: Thank You.

BY MR. BROVITN :

O Mr. Syed, do you know what a mot'ion f or a

new trial- is?
A I know now. I didn't know back then'

O Are let me I'm going t'o show You

what's been marked as Exhibit 8, Petitioner's Exhibit B'
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Do you recognize this exhibit?
A Yes.

O Would you like to take a minute to review

it or can you describe what. it is to the court?

A I would like to read it to myself please.

( Pause. )

BY MR. BROVüN:

O Okay. And is there a date on that letter?
A Yes, sir. March well, 3/30/2000.

O And can you put that into perspective. How

long is that after your sentencing?

A Well, I was convicted in February of 2000.

And so this hras, in-between my convj-ction date and my

first sentencing date.

O And what is ít?
A Ït's a letter that I sent. to Ms. Gutierrez,

asking her about, could she please file somethíng about

this to the court and try to mention something about Asia

McClane to the court before I get sentenced.

O And is there a stamp on that l-etter?

A Yes.

O Vühat does the stamp say?

A It says, "Received, April I, 2000."

O And is that your handwriting on the l-etter?

A Yes, sir.

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCR]PTION SERVICES
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A

MR.

Petitioner's
THE

Ms. MurPhY?

MS. MURPHY:

COURT:

Is that Your signature?

Yes.

BROWN: Your Honor, I would move

Exhibit No. B into evidence.
l

COURT: Any objection to its introduction,

No, Your Honor

So admitted then as Petitioner'sTHE

Exhibit No. I
(VrÏhereuPon, Pet'itioner' s

Exhibit No - B was admitted

into evidence. )

MR. BROWN: Thank Yoü, Your Honor'

BY MR. BROWN:

O So, can you explain in your own words

exactly what. you \^rere asking Ms. Gutíerrez to do, by way

of this letter.
A WeIl, I was asking her to make it apparent

to the court that, Asia Mcclane existed and that she had

thatshecouldprovídeanalibiforme,alongwitht'wo
other people, h€r boyfriend and her boyfriend's friend'

for the exact time that the state alleged or Jay Wilds

t.estified that I committed t'his murder'

aokay.AnddoyourecalÌhowspecifically
you asked Ms. Gutierrez to raise t'his issue?25
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A Yeah. In the letter it says' Motion for a

NewTrial.Imean,Idídn'tknowthein'sandout'sofit
or I didn,t know the technical- aspects of it' But I just

came to understand that through talkíng to other inmates

ínthecityjair,that'sreallytheonlythingyoucando
after you, ve been convicted, until you get to your appeal '

a And do you recall whether Ms ' Gutierrez

raised that issue in a motion for a new trial?

A From what I can recall' she didn't' And

she refused to do it' She emphasized that that's

somethingwecanthatcanonlyberaisedonappeal.
Thatisnothingthatwecanuserightnow'So'I--I
mean,whatcanldobutjusttakewhatshesaidaStrue.

a I'm going to I want to turn Your

attentionbacktotheissueofpleabargaining.Didthere
comeatj.mewhenMs.Gutierrezexplainedtoyouwhatan
AIfred PIea is?

A No' But I did learn about Alfred plea when

Iwrotetothecityjaillibrary.Youcan(inaudible)
because I h/as a juvenile at the time' so I was housed on

the juvenile (inaud'ibte) ' We di-dn't get a chance to go to

t.he library. So, I wrote to the city jail library and

askedthemaboutAlfredpleabecauseit'hrasrecommendedto
mebyanotherinmate.Andlreceivedtheinformat,ionfrom
the librarian that, €ssent.iarry, the Arfred plea was a

410- 466-2033
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plea that you take when you acknowledge that you can't

a person ís afraíd to win a triaL excuse fil€r a person

is afraid they're not going to win a trial. So, they

would plead guilty to the charge in exchange for a l-esser

sentence than would be imposed íf a person went to trial.

That was my understanding of it,

O Okay. And if you had been offered a

reasonable plea, would you have accepted it?
A I mean, I absolutely would have, once Ï

realized that there was no way I could prove t.hat I was

somewhere el-se, when the State's t.heory placed me or

excuse me, the State argued that. I was committing this

murder and Jay Vüilds test.ified to that. So, in my mínd,

it wasn't a choice of taking a plea deal or going home.

It was a choice of taking a plea deal for X amount of

years or going t.o prison for the rest of my lif e.

O And I just use the word reasonable to

describe a plea deal. What does that mean to you?

A I mean, well, it \^tas explained to me, âs Ï

said, you know, when you're a young guy coming through the

jail, a lot of older guys would tend to try to educate you

to things and share advice about different things. And

from what I gathered, it would be something like 20 or 30

years and I would do half the time. And once again,

.this is what the impressíon was in my mind, at what was
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beingtoldtomebyotherguysinthejail.Andlwasl'7
at the time. so that would play a strong factor, because

I was young. Ï didntt have a crlminal record' So' I

mean, Ï did have some understandíng of it'' And

essentiatty, that''s what led me to I mean' I coul-d say

the chronol-ogy of the events was' get little bits and

pieces of it, of what' t'he State's theory was' After I

receivedtheletterfromAsiaMcClane,gavet'helett.erto
Ms. Gutierrez' Ms' Gutierrez told me' she looked into it'

nothíngcameofit.Andt'henaft'erwards,Ifeltt.hat
there was no chance for me to prevail at trial ' Because

attheendofthedaythat'sinmymind'that'swhat
was the most important part. what happened between 221'5

and2:36p.m.?IfIcou1dn'tprovethat'nothingelse
mattered.

O

of, I think
A

okay. Would you you mentioned a plea

you saíd, 20 t'o 25 Years '

I mean, I was understanding that something

Iike 20 or 30 Years '

O Would you have accepted a longer plea?

A As I stated before that to me' it wasn't a

caseofmetakingapleadealorbeatingitattrial'oT
going home. It was a case'of me going to prison for X

amount of years versus me going to prison for t'he rest of

my life.

41-0- 466-2033
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a

Motion

Mr.

for a

Syed, are you aware of whether

Modification of Sentence fil-ed
there
in your\^IaS' a

case?

A At the time f was not. llüel-l, once I
discharged Ms. Gutierrezt Mr. Dorsey was appointed to me.

And I did broach the subject of, you know, this Asia

McCl-ane situation. And he, in turn, also said, wel-l¡ we

just got to focus on the sentencing. So, I saíd okay.

And I didn't know at the t.ime that well, I didn't
understand that the whol-e concept of fi1íng a motion for
reconsideration of sentence and f didn't find out untíl
actually probably 2006 that it \^ras filed and denied. I
think, within like 30 days. So, I belíeve, that Judge

Heard, on the docket entries, it says, "Read, considered,

and denied. " Within, ,1ike, a few weeks of my sentencing.

O And, f'm sorry, who was the judge that
A Judge Wanda Heard.

A And was Judge Heard also your trial- judge?

A Yes, sir.
O So, are you aware of whether Mr. Dorsey

asked Judge Heard to hold that motion for modificatíon sub

curia?
A At the tíme, I had no knowledge of it.. But.

now, I do have an understanding that he did not ask for it
t.o be held in advance or sub curj-a. And, probably in 2000
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a couple of years ago when I found out about this, I

couldn't figure out how someone could be sentenced to lífe

in prison, and if you file for a modification request, You

don't ask for it to be hel-d. Because the modification is
intended to demonstrate t.o the sentencíng court, that the

defendant has changed or that he's earned an opportunity
to get a lesser sentence. And it just. didn't make sense

that íf I just received a life sentence plus 30 years,

what could I possibly show the judge within the 30 or 60

day time limit that I deserved a sentence reductíon. It
dídn't make any sense to me. Had I known at the time, T

absol-ute1y would have asked him to for it. to be held

sub curia or in advance. Because real-istical-ly' what

could I do in 30 to 60 days to demonstrate to the

sentenci-ng judge that. I deserve a sentencing cut.

O And, again, your motion for modífícation
sentence was denied in approximately what year?

A I mean, iL was denied I believe 30 days

after my sentence.

O So that woufd have been the year 2000?

A The year 2000. Yes, sir.

O Okay. Since that time, since the year of

2000, have you gotten into any trouble while you've been

locked up?

A No, sir, I've maintained a very clean

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRTPTION SERVICES
41-0- 466-2033 410-4 94-10L5
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adjustment record. And I participated in al-l the programs

that are offered. I have certificates which you got right

there. I have recommendations ' Throughout my

incarceration, I worked in the Chaplain's Offíce' Ï

participated in a lot of programs and a lot of fundraising

programs, and a tot of, (inaudible) programs' I mean' I

havecertificatesforthem.Ijustalwayst'rytoyeah.
MR. BROWN: I'm going to Your Honor' I'fiI

goingt'oshowtheDefendantorthePetitionerwhat'sbeen
marked as it's actually a series of exhibits

THE COURT: They're all of the same nature?

MR.BROWN:Correct'Therearenumbered9A--
THECOURT:That.'sfine.Iwasgoingtosuggest

that.
MR. BROVüN: -- through 9L' as in Larry'

BY MR. BROVüN:

a Mr' Syed' could you take a look at these

exhibits and very briefly just go through them and very

brieflyexplaint'othecourtwhatt.heyare.lnfact',f,ll
put t.he paqe starting with Exhibit 9A'

A Vüetl, it's it I guess all of them are

specifically,theyarecertificat'esawardedtomebythe
voluntaiy activities coordinator, sgt. Lynn. Then there

wasaSgt.Porte(phonetic).There,stheVüarden,soffice.
The warden himself, r mean, they're basicarry certificates

ACCUSCR]BESTRANSCRIPT]oNSERV]CES410- 494-7015
4l- 0- 466-2033
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thatpeopleachievewhentheystaythreeyearsinfraction
free, four years, five years, six years' seven years' when

you participate in different programs. Essentially, Ï

mean, I did atl this and tried to stay positive because Ï

believe one day I'd be able to go back to court and

demonstrate that -- T',d either earned opportunity to get a

sentencecutortogetparoledorwhatever.oriflwould
get a chance like t'oday, to plead my innocence to the

court.
a So, I just I'm flípping through these

here.I'mon9]-,9J,9K'Haveyouhadachancetoqt'd
I'msorryrandgL'Haveyouhadachancetoseeallof
these exhibits, 9A through 9L?

A Yes, sir'

O And do You recognize them to be

authenticate, copies of actual certificates you received?

A I mean, absolutely' A person you could

contact the case manager at' the prison' That's who I got

these from' They're in my base fil-e' So he's the one who

gave me the coPies of them'

MR. BROVüN: Your Honor' I move f9t the

introduction into evidence of Defendant or Pet'itioner, s

Exhibits 9A through 9L'

THE COURT: AnY objection' Ms' MurPhY?

MS. MURPHY: No' Your Honor'

ACCUSCRIBESTRANSCRIPTIoNSERVICES
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THE COURT: The court wiÌl- admit ínto evidence

then Petítíoner's Exhibits 9A through L'

MR. BROWN: Thank Yoü, Your Honor'

(WhereuPon, Petitioner' s

Exhibit Nos. 9A-L was

admitted into evidence. )

BY MR. BROWN:

O If this Court were to modifY Your

and even if it were a mi-nimal modífication. For

if your sentence had been reduced from life' plus

to life. What affect would that have

MS. MURPHY: Objection as to relevance'

Honor.

senLence

example,

30, down

Your

MR.

issue based on

BROWN: We1l, Your Honor, we have raised

the Motion for Modification of Sentence

an

and

I even

THE COURT: WelI, I guess the question is' would

if the Court

MR. BROVüN : I'm sorrYr I guess

THECOURT:--eveniftheCourt'grant'edthat
would not be the judge to would consider therelie f '

motion, correct?
MR. BROWN: I'm sorry, Your Honor?

THEcoURT:Evenif,oríf,weretheCourt,to
grantthereliefrequestingaformof,Iguess,arevised

T
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Motion for Modification of Sentence, I woul-dn't be the

j udge

MR. BROVüN: I guess what I should have asked,

Your Honor, if you can give me a chance again.

BY MR. BROVüN:

O If the initial judge who denied your motion

for modification, íf she had even reduced your sentence

from life plus thirty, down to 1ife, would that have had

an impact on your incarceration?
MS. MURPHY: Objection as to relevance, Your

Honor.

MR. BROWN: Your Honor, it goes dírectly to
prejudice.

THE COURT: I' 11 overrul-e the obj ection.
THE WITNESS: Well, it woul-d have a tremendous

affect. Because as it stands right now, I'm housed in a

maximum securit.y prison and I've completed all of the

programs that are avail-able. And I'm inel-igible to go t.o
medium, not because of my record, but because of my

sentence. So if it was to be a situat.ion, and it does

happen a lot, where sentencing judges will look at the

person's record and sây, wel], I'1Ì take away the plus,
but I'l-l- l-eave you with the life. And that makes you

eligible to transfer to medium where you'11 be afforded
the opportunity to part.icipate i-n more programs and things

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES
410- 466-2033 41-0- 494-7015



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I
9

10

11

72

13

T4

15

L6

I1

18

I9
20

21

22

23

24

25

55
ADNAN SYED VS. STATE OF MARYLAND

October 25 , 2012 BEFORE JUDGE MARTIN P. VüELCH

of that nature. So, it would further the programs that I
could participate and the opportunities that, I woul-d have

while I'm incarcerated. So, it woul-d have a tremendous

af fect. And it woul-dn't even have to be such a drastic
reduction elther.

MR. BROWN: Your l{onor, I have no further
questions at this time.

THE COURT: And, Ms. Murphy, it's about 72:30

now. Do you want to keep going or?

MS. MURPHY: UM

THE COURT: Because f'm almost inclined to
MS. MURPHY: Are you inclined to take a break

now?

THE COURT: No, T'fii thinking.
MS. MURPHY: That's fine, Your Honor. I don't

expect to be lengthy but f can certainly do it. after the

break.
THE COURT: Okay. Let me just check. Sheriff

and Madam Clerk, are you two okay?

CLERK: How long is she thinking?
THE COURT: Hmm?

CLERK: How long ís she t.hínking?

THE COURT: ( Inaudíbte. )

(Open court: )

THE COURT: Ms. Murphy, why don't we go ahead

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES
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and try and l-et's sort of see where

MS. MURPHY: OkaY' Thank

THE COURT: And' as much

Iet's it's Productíve time'

CROSS_EXAMTNAT]ON

Gutierrez '

I'm just asking Yoü'

Ms . Gutierrez, t'hat You

we are.

you, Your Honor.

time as You need.

t.hat's what You

were innocent,

But

ínnocence,

BY MS . LVIURPHY:

O Mr. Syed, you've always maintained your

correct?
A Yes, ma' am'

O And t.hat' s what you conveyed to Ms '

that You were innocent?

A I conveyed to Ms ' Gutierrez that I was

but I did not have confidence in prevailing at
i-nnocent,

trial.
O

conveYed to

correct.?
A Yes, ma'am' Along with the fact that I

didn't have confidence

a I'm just' asking that one question' Thank

you. Now, you I^Iere actually called by the police the

night of JanuarY 13th, correct?

AlbelieveitWaSofficerAgcot(phonetic)'

whocalledmycellphoneandhetestifiedthatl^Iehad
about a three, four minute conversation'

4 1 O- 466-2033
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O Right. So you knew, you were one of the

first. to know essentially that, Hae Min Lee hlas missing'

correct ?

A Yes, ma' am.

O So that day woul-d be significant to You¡

correct ?

A Wellr âs far as I didn't know that she

was missing. The only thing that he mentioned to me was

that, her family was she didn't I believe, she

didn, t go pick up her cousin from school. so, âs far as

saying that T knew that she was missing, I didn't know

that she was missing.

O Okay. You and Hae Min Lee had been very

close that year, correct?
A We had been close for the four years that

we knew each other.

O And that year in particular, you had been

very close, correct?
A We had dat.ed f or about six months.

O And that incl-uded a sexual relationship'
correct ?

A Yes, mat am.

O You spoke on the phone often, correct?

A Yes, ma' am.

O You dídn't catl Hae Min Lee on the l-3th,
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did you?

A

So, íf
Well,

we wereday.

call-ed

called

phone

I would have seen

both in school-, Ï
her ín school- that

wouldn't have

her.

O You didn't call her after Officer Agcot

you, did You?

A Did I call her?

O Yes.

A Did I call her house? She didn't have a

or anything?

O Did you call her house after Officer Aqcot

called You?

A I did speak to several of her friends '

Fromwhatlunderstoodfromtheconversation,hewasat'
her house saying that', askíng me' had I seen her that day

A I'm just asking You' did You call her

house?

A He called me from her house

a Did you call Hae Min Lee's house after yotl

spoke to Officer Agcot?

A When he called me from her house ' I don't

undersland,whywouldlcallherhousebackifhe'sather
house callíng me, asking, You know' did I see her that day

or anything like that'
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O So, T take it from

call- Hae Min T,eê's house

on January 13th, correct?
A He called me from

O Alt right. So you

13rh?

answer, that you

Officer Agcot spoke

your

afterdid not

to you

on the

A

O

the days and

A

25rh.

Hae Min Lee's house.

spoke to Officer Agcot

Yes, mat am.

You also were interviewed by detectives in
weeks following, correct?

I believe it was a Det. O'Shea¡ on the

O From Baltimore County, right?
A Yes, mat am.

O Less than a week later?
A It was on t.he yesr ma, am.

O And Det. O' Shea asked you where you \^rere on

the 13th, right?
A I believe that he asked me if I had seen

Hae Lee that day.

O You Lold Det. O, Shea you had been at school
that day and had gone to track practice, correct?

A Yes, matam.

O And that was in response to his questions,
I presume, correct?

A Yes, mat am.
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a Thank you' There also came a time that

police did a search warrant at your house' right?

A T know that f rom triâl- '

MS.MURPHY:Court'sindulgenceonemoment'

please.
. (Pause. )

MS. MÇRPHY: No further questions' Your Honor'

THE COURT: AnY redirect' Mr' Brown?

MR. BROVüN: f just have a very bríef question'

REDTRECT EXAMINATTON

BY MR. BROWN:

O Ms ' Murphy asked whether you called Hae

Lee's house on the 13th' Were you dating her at that

time?
A No, sir'

a Were you aware of whether she had another

boyfriend at that time?

A WeII, Yes' sir'

MR. BROWN: No further questions'

THECOURT:I'msorry'Theanswerwas'yessir?
THE VüITNESS: Yes' sir' That I was aware that

she had another boyfriend at the time '

MR. BRovüN : No f urther questions , Your Honor .

THECOURT:Anylimitedrecross'Ms'Murphy?
MS. MURPHY: No' Your Honor'

ACCUSCRIBESTRANSCR]PTIoNSERVICES
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THE COURT: All right. You may step down then,
Mr. Syed.

(Vrlitness was excused. )

THE COURT: And, your next witness then?

MR. BROVüN: It would be Ms. Meade. And if
Your Honor, if you coul_d advise me as to what time I
should tel-l- her to be here.

THE COURT: And this will be your last witness?
MR. BROVüN: Correct .

THE COURT: You want to err on t.he side of
caution and maybe say 2:30?

MR. BROWN: 2:30, okay.

THE COURT: So, the Court will- take its luncheon
recess. We'11- reconvene at 2-.30.

(liühereupon, a luncheon recess was taken at
L2:43:42 p.m., and the proceeding resumed at 2:44:55 p.il.,
as follows: )

AFTERNOON SESSTON
THE COURT: And, Ms. Murphy, would you be so

kind t.o recal-l the matter then, please.
MS. MURPHY: Thank you¡ your Honor. Recalling

Adnan syed vs. state of Maryland, case No. r99ro3o42
through 046, Post-convj-ction petit.ion No. 10432. Kathl_een

Murphy for the State.
THE COURT: And, Mr. Brown?

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRTPTION SERVICES
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MR. BROWN: Good afternoon, Your Honor' Justin

Brown on behal-f of Adnan syed, who's seated to my right.

THE COURT: And T be]ieve when we broke, wê were

continuing with the Petitioner's case. And j-s the

Petitioner prepared to call its next witness, Mr. Brown?

MR.BROWN:YesrYourHonor'Verybriefly'I'd
Iike to introduce anot.her exhibít., which I believe is

sel-f-authenticating. ft's a court

THE COURT: Is ít 10? Vüould be 10?

MR.BROWN:NumberlO.It'saportionofthe
transcript. And, specificatly, it's the portion in which

the state, in closing arguments, specifies the time range

when the murder took place. so, I would offer Defendants

Exhibit No. 10 into evidence'

THE COURT: And sor it's trial transcript pages'

page numbers?

MR. BROWN: The date is February 25' 2000' pages

65 and 66.

THE COURT:

MS. MURPHY:

THE COURT:

Bxhibit No. 10.

MR. BROWN:

THE COURT:

And any objection, Ms. MurPhY?

No, Your Honor-

So admitted then as Petitioner's

May I aPProach?

You may.

(Whereupon, Petitioner' sz3
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Exhibit No. 10 was admit.ted

into evidence. )

MR. BROVüN: And, Your Honor, ât this time, the

Petitioner cal-ls Margaret Meade.

THE COURT: Ms. Meade.

MARGARET MEADE

(A witness produced on cal-l- by the Petitioner, fírst

having been duly sworn according to law, testifies as

foll-ows: )

CLERK: Please stat.e your name and address for

the record.
THE VüITNESS: Margaret A. Meade, 1 North Charles

Suite 2470, Baltimore' Maryland, 2L202.

THE COURT: Thank Vour Ms. Meade. And, Mr'

Brown.

MR. BROVüN: Thank Your Your Honor.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. BROWN:

O Good afternoon, Ms. Meade.

A Good afternoon.

O Where did You go to law school?

A UniversitY of Baltimore.

O And did you work as a law clerk after law

school ?

A I worked as a l-aw clerk during law school
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for the Honorabl-e Judge John N. Prevas, worked in the

Attorney General-'s Office. And then when I -- and worked

at two small criminal defense firms, Vüalker -- excuse me,

Crew, Curl-in (phonetic) , Rosenburg (phonetic) during and

Dominic Donnelly (phonetic) during law school-. And then I
went to, upon graduation, I cl-erked on the Court of
Special Appeals for Judge Wenner. Excuse me, prior to
that, I went back to cl-erk with Judge John Prevas. And

then I went to cl-erk on the Court of Special Appeals for a

year, for Judge Wenner and Frederick. And then T went. to
work at the law firm, at that time the name was Walker and

Van Bavel.

O And what year were you admitted to the

Maryland Bar?

A I was sworn in in June of 1990.

O Are you admítt.ed into any other Bar's?

A Yes. The United States District. Court, the

Fourth Circuit, and the United States Supreme Court.

O Okay. And since you were admitted into the

Maryland Bar, have you been practicing law ever since?

A Yes.

a And how much of that, approximately, what

percentage has been criminal- law, criminal defense?

A Eighty-five percent, 90 percent.

O And, again, could you could you tell me

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES
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the name again of the firm, where you first started your--

AAsanassociate,Ifirstwenttoworkfor
vüalker and van Bavel. And that was in July of 1-991' And

then ít became vüalker, van Bavel, Amaral and Meade' And

then after eight years there, I l-eft and formed a

partnership with catherine Flynn. We had done a complex

deathpenaltycase.Welt,itwasthreedeathpenalty
cases, three separate incidences excuse me' Correct

that. Ït \^Ias two death penalty and a regular trial of

assault and false imprisonment, same client' And we got

along well, had similar values' And so we formed a

partnershiP in June of 1999 '

O Okay' And, do you still have a firm today?

A Yes.

O Vühat's that firm called?

A It's now Meade' FlYnn and GraY'

O And in your career as a defense attorney'

have you ever represented a defendant charged with murder?

A Yes.

a Have you ever represented a defendant

charged with attemPted murder?

A Yes.

O approximately how many times have you

represented someone charged with murder?

A I probably have' probably 10' L2 murders a



year, attempt murder. Some years it can be as much as 20'

But, it, s I would say alot of what I do in our office

are either the sex offenses or attempted murders, murders'

I seem to have a lot of those'

aAndareyotlab]-etotellwhatpercentageof
those have been in Baltimore CitY?

A The vast majority, intentionally' the vast

majority of my 22 years has been either in Baltimore city

or Baltimore County. Because I think it, s important to,

sort of, know the system' It's a better way of

representinganindividual'So'bestguess'f565''15
percent of homicide cases have been in Baltimore city'

O Do you hold any leadership positions in the

Baltimore legal communitY?

AI'mtheco_chairoft.heCriminalLaw

Commíttee for the Bar Association for three years. I,m

theAtt.orneyGrievanceCommissionPeerReview.onthe
character commiLtee, the Maryland Bar Law Examiner's

character committee. And I've been doing that now for six

years, maYbe seven Years'

O Do you have any experience teaching' either

young attorneYs or in law school?

A Vüell, I've been involved in the mentor

programandthelaw(inaudible)program'butr'vealso
donethreetwoprimaryt'eachingcourses'Fourth
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Amendment type courses with Judge Gordy and then with
Judge Kathleen Cox to judícial ínstítute. And, sor in
that capacity. And f vol-unteer at the University of
Baltimore for the moot court competitíons, that sort of
thing.

O Okay.

MR. BROVüN: Your Honor, I'm not sure if the

State wishes to voir di-re

THB COURT: Well, why don't you make your motion
first.

MR. BROWN: Okay.. Your Honor, I would move to
have Ms. Meade admitted as a criminal as an expert in
the practice of criminal defense in Baltimore City murder

cases.

THE COURT: An expert. in the field of in the
practice of criminal defense in Baltimore City?

MR. BROWN: Of murder cases in Balt.imore City.
Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Any voír dire, Ms. Murphy?

MS. MURPHY: No, Your Honor. I'll
THE COURT: Any objection?
MS. MURPHY: I won't object to Ms. Meade's

expertise in that area. I'11 just note my continued

objection to the rel-evance of her testimony.
THE COURT: Your objection is duly noted.
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410-466-2033 410- 494-7015



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

o

9

10

11

T2

13

I4

15

I6

I1

1B

I9

20

2I

22

23

24

25

6B

ADNAN SYED VS. STATE OF MARYLAND
October 25 , 2012 BEFORE JUDGE MARTIN P. VüELCH

MS. MURPHY: Thank your Your Honor.

THE COURT: But the Court finds that Ms. Meade

is, in factr âû expert in the practice of criminal- defense

of murder cases, ín the circuit court for Baltimore city.
BY MR. BROWN:

O Ms. Meade , I'd líke to go through some of
the materials that youtve reviewed for this case. I,ll
just name the document, you tell me if you've reviewed it?
Have you read the post-conviction petition?

A Yes.

O Have you read the supplement to t.he post-
conviction petition?

A Yes.

O Have you revi_ewed the exhibits that are
associated with the petit.ion and the supplement?

A WelL, the exhibits that were provided to
ilê¡ yes.

O Are you famil-iar wit.h the judges who have

been involved in this case? That being Judge Heard and

Judge Quarles?

A Yes . Very f amil-iar.

O Are you familiar with the prosecuLors who

have been involved in this case, that being, Kevin urick
and Kathleen Murphy?

A Yes.

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES
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O

Gutierrez?

A

O

way that you

to the best

practice?
A

have a good

the norm.

Yes.

Now,

defend

of your

And are you familiar with Cristina

the way that you practice l-aw and the

murder cases, is that in conformity,
knowledge, of the prevailing norms of

Vühat I do? Yes. I think it
reputation about it. But, yes,

is. I mean, I
I think it's

O Okay. I'd like to Lurn your at.tention to
general case preparation, how you approach a case. And,

in particular, a murder case. And what , íf âfly,

sígnificance do you attach to having a young client who, s

charged with such a serj-ous offense, such âs, a 17-year-
ol-d?

A The issue with a juvenile or somebody young

or inexperienced in the criminal- justice system is that
you do have to spend a significant amount of t.ime

explaining the process. And, I do it to everybody but
it's you know, people don't. understand the process of
preliminary hearing versus an indictment. And, for
example, f describe it âsr it's two different ways to
drive to your house. The State can do this or the State
can do that. And lots of times people aref well_, why
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can, t I have a preliminary hearing? wetl, the state's the

driver. so, I think particularly with young indivídual-s

andtheyhaveminimalornoexperienceinthecriminal
justicesystem,theyneedalotofhand-holdíng.And
sometimes r find that the famiry may need it more. But,

ítisextremeÌyimportantrinanykindofcase'but'
particularlymurdersandattemptedmurdersbecausethe
consequencesaresohiqh'Thatyourcl-ient'one'sclient'
my client, has a deep understanding of the judicial

process.

a Okay. And what', how much ' íf at all' would

concerned with the culture in which your client \^Ias

Is that a factor in how you woLlld approach the

A WeIl, I have a very' 1O-paqe form that I

fillout.Everythingfromthenamesofyourparents'your
children, do you have church, background, how far you got

inschool.Ït,simportantinanycasetoreallyhavean
understanding about. your client' s educational background'

cul_t.ural background. Because the way they do things , f or

example, I'fit representing somebody who's Korean' So'

explaining things and making sure that they understand'

notonlytheprocess'but,theculturethatsomeonegrows
upinrdoeshaveanimpactonhowyoudefendthem'what
mitigating factors can come up' So it is the totality

you be

raised?
case?
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of the Person is imPortant '

Ookay.Andbeforeyoutestifiedaboutthe
importance of educating your cIíent on various issues,

without going into a whole lot of detait. vühat basically

doyoutellthemaboutajurytrialandtheírrightto
have a jury trial-?

A Vüell, I always with my cl-ients st'art with

thepreliminaryhearing.Andthisisaconversationthat
Ihaverepeatedly.Andloftenmakemyclientsrepeatit
backtome.Solknowthatwhenweshowupatll:00,in
Part45,andnocourt'savailable'theyunderstandthat
it, s not me holding it uP, or the judge, of the prosecutor

hasSomehiddenagendatodragouttheircase.Thatthey
understand how the court system as a whole works ' So' I

always start out with preliminary hearing or the

indictment. And a lot of times peopte t'hink the

indictment means, they,ve basically been found guilty.

Well, it, S not. You know, I use t'he example, You can get

ahamsandwichindictedformurder.AndSo¡explaining
the arraignment and what you have t'o do at the

arraignment. And why, for example' I just explained this

theotherday.Why,att'hearraignment'theindictmentis
read ouL, in Balt'imore Cit'y' It's not done in other

jurisdictions, is read completely' and so'

A And specifically' again ' for someone

ACCUSCR]BESTRANSCRIPTIoNSERVICES
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charged with murder, what wou.ld you terr- them about the
prospect of a jury trial-, in general?

A Well, a jury's a gamble. you know, and

with al-] due respect to this court. you know, when Ïm
explaini.g, you can have a court trial_ there are t.hree
things, four things that can happen that. r explain.
First, the state coul-d dismi-ss the case. second, you

could enter into a plea. Third, you can have a court
trial-. Fourth, you can have a jury trial_. And when r go

t,hrough that processr lou know, T'll have cl-ients sây,
well, tell them r'11- take a stet. well, t.hat is not an

option here. so, when we get past the part that the state
is going to dismiss t.he case or that circumstance, then it
becomes a discussi-on on prea negotiations as wel-l as jury
trial and court trial.

And r'11- sây, sometimes a court triar is a long
guilty plea - sor lou have to have legal i-ssues or there, s

certain rare circumstances that you do a court trial-. And
l-ike r did one a couple of months ago in front of Judge
williams, because it was crear that there was some very
clear r didn't mean to say cl-ear twice. But itrs
there were legal issues that it was inappropriate to try
the case in front of a jury. so, i-n explaining the guilty
plea process, the court trial- process, and the jury tríal
process, r often sây, you never know what a jury is going
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to do.

want to
people.

go to
dont t

O Can you tell- the court a l-ittle bit about

the díscovery process? In a murder case, how do you as

the attorney, obtain discovery related to the case?

A lüell, You file motions. And the State is

obligated to produce certain evidence, mitigat.ing Brady

material- under 4-263, the Rule 4-263. And then once you

get the díscovery and you start evaJ-uating it, it's an

ongoing process. Are their loopholes? Like, I'm involved

in a case where t.here was some text messages. So, itf s

going back and some are missíng. And so you have to have

an open communication with the prosecutor t.o make Sure

you're getting all of the discovery.

O And do you share that discovery with your

client?
A Absol-utelY.

O How do You do that?

A There was a time that people would just

Xerox it and mail it to the jair. And not that I don't

want my client to have the discovery but I don't want

anybody else to have the discovery. 'cause I do early

in my career, somebody else, and it was in Bal-timore

county, got the discovery from my client. And then was

And if you want justice,
roll- the dice, 'cause hte

church. If you

know with 1,2
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abl-e to fashion some level of cooperation with the state.
ul-timatefy, that was discovered. so, T have found
particularly in Baltimore city, they move inmat.es between
the Jr building, or centrar Booking r ot the city jail, and
it's hard for them to have this legal packet followinq
them' so, r take r go and see them. As 

''m 
getting

discovery, I review it with them. T usually do a summary
that r gi-ve to them. And t.hen there are certain
statements or certain thì-ngs, r will give them a copy of.
Again, depending oD¡ if there's been any kind of agreement
with the state not to discr-ose certain information. so,
it f mean, it's my client's case. This is not about
flì€, it's about my cr-ient. r work for my client. so, they
need to know what's going on. The good, the bad, and the
ugÌy.

O And is this a dj-screti-onary thing on your
part or is it something that you berieve¡ or that in your
opi-nion, a defense attorney has a duty to?

A The defense attorney has to do r mean,
ít's a must- How can you ever think to defend somebody if
they don't know what the information is against them. r
mean, they may be able to exprain something or provide you
with information about somebody's st.atement or a
circumstance that you donrt know. I meanr 1lou don,t get
everything about a case necessarily in discovery. There

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRIPTTON SERVICES4IA-466-2033 4IO_4g4_701s
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are two sides.

O Okay. I'd like to ask you some questions

bargaining. Why in a criminal case' and in

in a murder case, VrhY is plea bargaining
about PIea

particular
ímportant?

A PIea bargainíng or plea negotiations are

crucial in any case' Again' because going in front of 1'2

peoplethatyoudon'tknow.Youdon'tknowwhothey're
goi-ng to be. I mean, that jury panel can come in and you

are fine with al-most everybody in ít' That jury panel can

come in and you, re thinking, did al-r these people just get

broughtinfromCarrollCounty'Nodisrespect'toCarroll
County, but, You know, there's geographicat differences'

So, you don't know what L2 people you're going to get'

And the consequence can be so devastating' You know ' íf

you don't have a discussion about resolving a case' You

not only put your client at very' serious hiqh risk or

very lengthy , or harsh punishment ' But it's not good for

the system- It's not good for witnesses' You know' a

pleaisalthoughsomepeopledon'tlikepleas,buta
plea is one of the best' \^/ays to resolve a case' in

real-itY.
O In your opinion' what ' íf ârIYr duty does

thedefensehave,defenseattorneyhavewithrespectto
plea negotiations?

ACCUSCRIBESTRANSCRIPTIoNSERVICES
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A I believe that an attorney, a defense

attorney, has an affirmative duty to engage or at .l-east

speak about plea negotiations.

O Okay. And lookíng at that from the flip-

side, what, if âñy, duty is there for the attorney to keep

theír clj-ent in the loop about any such discussions?

A T'm a firm -- f work for my client' I work

for that person. so, âs an employee of that person, Ï

have a duty to keep them informed and give them all of

their options. I mean, this is their case. They are the

ones that are going to go to prison or not go to prison.

They need to be involved in the decision making.

OWhat'otherkindofscenaríoinwhichyour
client insists on his innocence, what, if ânlr affect does

t.hat have on whether you will engage in plea negotiations?

AWell¡âSItel].allmyclients,thereare
innocent people sitting in jail . so, Yoü have t.o evaluate

with your client, so that there is an understanding, that

what t.he evidence is against. them. And that there's

always the option of an Alfred plea, North carolina vs'

Alfred or Atfred vs. North carolina, where you can sâY,

the state has all this evidence against me. I',m not

guilty, but I want to take the benefit of a bargain.

.cause, again, it's a gamble. And sor it is important to

have those discussions with your client '25
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O And just so T'm c.l-ear, even íf the client
is maintaining his innocence?

A Tt depends on what the evidence is. I just
had this discussion with a cl-íent the other day. That,
you know, I think we're going to win at trial but the
state has made a reasonabl-e offer. And he has a couple of
days to think about it. And, you can maintain your
j-nnocence, but you could do a long time in jail. So, I
characterize it as a damage control-. yorl know, what is
the best of way handling something when you, re faced with
these kinds of charges.

a And before you mentioned an A1fred plea,
from your experience, is it. difficult to convj_nce a court
to accept an AIfred plea in BaÌtimore City?

A f 've never had a problem wit.h it. f 've
never had I can't recall, could it have happened?

Maybe. r can't recal-l any incident.s where judges said,
I'm not taking an Alfred plea.

O Now, when you are once you have engaged

in plea negotiations or when you're considering engaging
in them, what. are the factors that weigh most heavíly in a

plea bargaining decision?

A Vüel-l , first, what does my client want to
do. And second, it's what are the consequences? what's
t.he worst case scenario and what's the best case scenario?

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES
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That's how I describe it to my clíent. vüorst case

scenario, first-degree murder, Iífe plus 50r 000 years, You

know. Best case scenario, not guilty. What ís in there,

what's in there between? And, again, You have to every

síngle case is different. You have to l-ook ât, what is

the evídence against this particular person, and

evaluating plea negotiations. Vühat are yoLi strengths and

weaknesses. You know, if the state has a dead-up strong

case, then your plea position, your negotiat.ing position

is a little weaker. Tf they've got five witnesses and

only two are showing up to courL all t.he time. They can't

find the other when there are some weaknesses on the

part of the State/ s case, then that makes plea

negotiations a titt.le different. But you've got to know

your case.

OTsitfairtoSaythatiftheState'scase
i-s stronger, that would push you further in the direction

of a plea agreement?

sure I understand the question ' If

evidence against mY cl-ient.

push? Yes.

A

t.he State has

O

A

a

A

not a push.

I'm not

a lot of
Yes.

Would I
And what, if any

But ít's not

It's not like I'm
let me strike that. It's

forcing, because I25
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ultimately always say to my cl-ient, this is your choice,
your option. But they need to know what all their choices
are. They need to know what their options are and what

the consequences are for each of those choices. So, you

know, I would pursue it. Particularly, if somebody was

facing first-degree murder and life, a potential rife
sentence.

O And what what affect, if âñy, might the
presiding judge have over this process?

A A tremendous, tremendous impact on plea
negotiat.ions.

O How?

A We1l, it.'s ul-timatef y, the judge, is the
neutral detached magistry. And r would be willing to sây,
90 percent or more of the judges on the Bal-timore city
circuit court are very good about doing a King sol_omon

and, you know, split the baby so to speak. .It's you

know, the state has one position, the Defense has one

position. And i_t, s J_mportant to have the judge be

involved in t.hat. r mean, the state always comes to me

with, oh, r want 20 years, for example, and something.
I'm like, let's see what judge we have. Vüe,lI approach
the bench and discuss it and see what the judge says.

O And is that the typical genesis of a plea
deal ín this courthouse, that initially the stat.e brings
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it to you or can it be the other way around?

A It happens in all ways. Again, depending

on the case, but usua]-Iy I'lI bríng a I'11 say to the

State, what are you offeríng? Now it's much easier now

than it was back in 1"999 or 2000. Now, we have, what I

cal-l, the cheat sheets, and they go to Reception court.

The State's Attorney fills out the cheat sheet, is again

as I've nicknamed it. And there's always a column for

State's offer. And So it's much more well- documented aS

wel-l- as better communicated, as far as what the offers

are. And that way when the state's Attorney changes,

.cause they might move around t.he of fice, there's some

document and some consistency from one state's Attorney to

theother.So'nowit'seasier,Youjusttaket.hecheat
sheet, approach the bench, and engage in whatever

discussion. But back in 1'999, 2000, it was a ]-ittle more,

usuallybeforegoingtocourtrtherewouldbe
discussionsr or at the court, there would be some

discussions. What are you offering? I can't think of

case Irve ever not asked the state, whatts your offer'

a Okay. And just one more question about

process.Doyoueverinvolveyourclient'sfamilyin
plea bargaining Process?

A I do. Because, I find that if for a

couple of reasons and I've learned this the hard way'

a

the

the

Is
25
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that if I am communicating with the family, then my

client's not talking to them on jail calls. Jail call-s

havebeenaproblem.AbenefittotheStateanda
detriment to the defense. so, it's important that the

family,sonboard.And,particularly,incases'aserious
nature of attempted murder or murder, that' the family

if my client is maintaining that. I',m innocent, I dídn't do

this. The family wants t.o believe that. vühether they do

or not' is case-by-case, but wants to believe that'. So,

it's important to explain to a family why now yo:t son or

daughter is going to enter a plea ' But I thought he was

innocent. wetr_, there are innocent people in jail, going

to triars, a gamble. so, this is why we're engaging in a

plea.Sorit'sveryimport'antthattheclientknowsthat
the family wíll keep writing letters when he goes to

prison. And, you know, that everybody is on board'

EverybodY has the information'

a Okay' And you briefly mentioned what it

waslikebackaroundLgggto2000,inthattimeperiod.
lriere you defending murders back then?

A Yes.

a And were there a lot of murders in

Baltimore CitY around then?

A VüeIl, Yês' I mean' unfortunately' there

arealotofmurdersinBaltimoreCity'But'Yes'Iknow
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that the murder rate's gone down a little. Although, this

year it's suppose to be up from last year. But, Yes.

O And what can You descríbe what

experiences you have plea bargaining in murder caSeS with

the Baltimore Cíty's State's Attorney's Office around that

time?

A Positive. You know, I never had a

sítuation where I had a State's Attorney ignore me about

plea negotiations. Then, it htas more what judge you were

going to be in f ront of . And I think a l-ot. more of plea

negotíations, during that. time occurred more in the

courtroom, approaching the bench, engaging the judge more.

O Okay. We'Il get to that. But, I mean, You

said that you were never ignored, but were you ever told

by a state, s Attorney that¡ ûor we will not offer your

client
Never. I never had that.A

O

A

even ì-magine

anything.

O

offer that yoLl

AT
where there were

Never.

Um --
T mean,

a StaLe's

Did there ever

got h/as a life

I can't even imagine I can't

Att.orney saying, we' re not of fering

come a time when the best

sentence?

don't recal-l ever

two people kitled
being I had one

and the offer was,
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like, l-ife, suspend all but 60. And sometimes if you get

an offer l-ike, life, suspend all but 60.-- I think it's
ímportant to l-ook at what count they're calling to.
Because íf you if they're insisting on calling, for
exampÌe, first-degree murder. Then I've got to look ât,
my client's goíng to have l-etters versus numbers. And

what is hís or her life going to be in the DOC. So that's
a consideration. But in that case with the two, the

double homicide, ít was life, suspend al-I but 60.

And then you always could go to t,he judge. I
mean, it is certainly common that a judge can, people call
it undercut the State. But, it's the judge looking
doing what a judge j-s suppose to do. Vühen the judge

shouldn't take just what the State says. The judge should

look at both sides and make what is a fair and appropriate
proposal-, or say what he or she would do in a particular
circumstance.

a So is it fair to say that if you weren't
satisfíed with the St.ate's offer, you'd take it to the
j udge ?

A Right. I mean, I can't think of a case

that there wasn'L an opportunity to discuss every
judge's first questíon, have you guys discussed a plea?

Have you guys discussed resolving this and not have a jury
trial-? I can't I can't thínk of an experience where a
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judge would say that

O Okay. I' d tike to turn your attention now

to Mr. Syed's case. And based on what you know about this

case, in your opinion, is this a case in which the defense

attorney should have, ât l-east, obtained a plea offer for

Mr. Syed?

A Yes. Absolutely'

O VühY is that?

AWel-lrhewasl-T,potentiatlyfacingalife

sentence. It \^/as a emot.ional kind of homicide. And it

the consequences were very steep, (inaudible) tife

sentence. so, plea negotiation shoul-d have been done. I

would have done a plea negotiation. Even if even if my

cl-ient was saying I'm innocent' I would sâY' we need to

look and see what are your options ' That way you're

making an educated choice '

O And are you aware that' a there was a co-

conspirator, who testifíed against Mr' Syed?

A Yes. Vüho supposedly helped him bury?

aYeah.What,ifafllrsignificancewoufd
that have in your calculation, in terms of seeking a plea?

Altwouldhaveasignificant'Imean'when
you look at, a murder case, I do witness chart, crime Scene

charts,andthenasunmary.That'swhatldoalways.
And,youlookatthewitnesses.Allright.Youhavea25
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co-conspirator, what are the options of discrediting this

indívidual by, in that this indívidual ís providing hands-

on informatíon, eye-witness kind of information, a jury is

going to give that some weight' So that would be

somethíngthatwouldbeVeryimportantinbalancing
whetherornottogototrialVersuspleanegotiations.

Andit,snot'andlwanttomaket'herecord

clear. ft's not that you only do a plea' only go to

triar. you prepare for triar. vühen you st.art getting

mounting evidence against your cl-ient'' You }ook at what

alt the options are' short' of trial'

OYoumentionedbeforethat'youarefamiliar'
of course, with Judge Vüanda Heard' correcL?

A VerY familiar'

O And do you have experience plea bargaining

with her?

A Yes'

O And are you aware that she's the judge that

presided over Mr' Syed's second tríal?

A Yes.

O What

with Judge Heard?

A Judge Heard, I've had trials with her'

her. And she alwaYs asks about a

experience do you have plea bargaining

and, in fact, Your Honor, I said to Mr.
I've had

plea. I

pleas with

mean
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Brown, go check the record. I cant t imagine there were

not some kind of discussíonsr oñ the record, or indication

that there were discussíons on the record, about plea

resolution. The onÌy way that Judge Heard woul-d have not

gone into that, ís if somebody said, no plea negotíations.

I'm not doing that. Going to trial. Unless that was/ tfie

l-ine hras drawn j-n t.he sand, so to speak. But Judge Heard

always and she's very good to work pleas out with.

She's very fair. She's very reasonable. She will l-isten

to both sides. I mean I I love taking a case in front of

Judge Heard, both for trial as well âs¡ I want to work it.

out. Oh, great, I've got Judge Heard.

, O You just mentioned before, someone drawing

a line in the sand. Who was ín the posítion to draw such

a l-íne?

A The defense attorneY would be

in t.he position of that.

O Are You aware that Mr. SYed's

course you are, because we discussed it. His

ended in a mistrial.
A Right. Because Judge Quarles

the only one

that something with Cristina Gutierrez didn't
truth about something.

O Correct.
A There was a rather a blow-out.

had found

tell- t.he

In fact, I

wel-1, of

first trial



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

8

9

10

11

I2
13

I4

15

I6

I7

18

L9

20

2I

22

23

24

25

B7
ADNAN SYED VS. STATE OF MARYLAND

october 25, 2012 BEFORE JUDGE MARTTN p. ÏIELCH

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCR]PTTON SERVICES
410- 466-2033 4to_4g4_7015

remember hearing about

O Did you

Quarles ?

it at that time.
have any experience with Judge

A

O

A

Quarles and I
Quarles.

a

bargaining?

Yes.

And what

Idida
did some

family law case in front of Judge

criminal matt.ers in front of Judge

Was Judge QuarJ_es receptJ_ve to plea

A yes. And Judge euarres again, different
judges. Judge euarres is extremely intelligent. He was
very formal-. He had a r think he has a very nice, dry-
whit sense of humor. But, in the courtroom, it was no
nonsense. He was he expected everybody to be prepared
and come in and r wrote my one and only check for
contempt, because r was two minutes late in his courtroom.
He had a little thing about it. But, he was and that
i-s an example. He was very precise and he was an
excel-l-ent judge. He is an excell_ent judge.

O If you and f ímagine over the years
you've had numerous cases that end in mistría1s.

A r äctualry haven't had numerous. f,ve had
a couple, but it, s not been it, s not very often,
there's a mistriar. rt's usuarry something pretty
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startling to generate a mistrial.
O Okay. Well, from what experi-ence you have

had, after a mistrial and prior to a new trial, if indeed

the State seeks a new trial-, is that another opportunity

to plea bargain?
A Absolutef y. And, in fact', that's often

and again, not havíng a lot of them. But it's often a

good chance to sâY, now you know what a jury is, nohl yotl

see what that experience is. Because no matter how much

you describe a jury, and t.he panel, and the sel-ection

process to a client, I've had them say when the panel was

coming in, what are all these people doing here? vüell'

there's the 72 people we're going to be picking. so that

is an excellent opportunity to work out a resolution,

short of going through another trial. I mean, trials are

very stressful and very difficutt for everybody. You

know, the attorneys but more important, t.he client.. And

if that. can be avoíded and it's in his or her best

interest, then that's what should happen'

O Do you have experience with clients' your

clients, âsking you about a plea deal?

A Yes.

O Asking You what's mY offer?

A Yes.

O And25
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AVüell,.theyphraseit,whatdoestheState

want? vüell, I don't know what the state wants. Let's

fíndoutoTtyouknow,theState'swanting25yearsbut
werre going to go in front of the judge and see what ít

is. It's alwaYs a discussion'

aAndbasedonwhatyouknowabout.thiscase'
wouldyouexpectthatsomeoneinMr.Syed'sshoeswould
make that inquirY to their lawYer?

A Yes. And this ís why' he was in jaif'

There are jailhouse lawyers. And those jailhouse lawyers

will sâY¡ well, what's the State want? Vühat do you

what are t.hey of fering? That is il ve had people that

areinexperiencedwiththesyst'emandtheyalwaysask
that. T mean, that's standard'

O Based again on what you know about Mr'

Syed's case , íf you had been his lawyer and íf you were

seekingapleadealforhim'inyouropinion'whatkindof
deal would You be looking for?

A I'd try to push the State for a second-

degree. And maybe they would do it and maybe t'hey

woul-dn't. But, you know, it I woutd want to try to

pushforasecond-degree,trytodemonstratemitigatingor
unique circumstances ' And again' Vou know' I did not have

the benefit. of having, outside of t'he reviewing the

transcript,sortof,theflavorofalloftheSt'ate's
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evidence. But, the State's case, even though there \^ras

certainly this alibi issue but the state's case \^¡as pretty

strong.Andtherewaswouldbea].otofemotionswith
this because where somebody rníght rob somebody and don't

knowthem.Mostmurdersorat'tempt'edmurders'are
somebodyyouknowthey'reoveranissue.They'reSome
sorLofrelationshipbetweentheparti.es.AndSo,in
that,Mf.Syedhadarelationshipwiththedecedentin
this case, Lhe victim in this case' that would be

somethingthatcouldpossiblygenerateadepravedheart,
sort of, argument for second-degree'

And his being I7 ' and no experience' no prior

criminal record, you know' I would try to push for a 25 or

30 year sentence ' You know' I don't think that the

sentence, as tragic as it is for the victim and the

family, You know, to put somebody away at l1 for life over

t.his type of circumstance and all' I don't thínk would

have been fair, ot just, or what society should do'

a And what' would you have done if you had

receivedanofferfromtheStatethatyoudidn,tlike'
thatyoudidn,tt.hinkwasfairunderthecircumstances?

A APProach the judge ' I mean' I

occasionallyinDistrictCourt'theywon'tletyou
approach the bench' But, I've never had a judge' that I

sâlr judge, I want to discuss a potential plea offer'
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Itve never had a judge sâY, no. No plea negotiations' No

plea díscussions. Goíng to tríal. I've never had that'

I mean, the judge may agree with the state and sort of

l-eaves me in that same box. But you don't know until- you

try. Especíally with Judge Heard. I mean' she just

she's faír and shet s reasonable '

a Okay. Tf I can ttrrn your attention to the

other issue we're pursuing; the alibi witness. Could you

very briefty explain the significance of an alibi witness

in a murder case?

AVüetlrâDalibiwitnessinanycase,Tuse

the example of the young man who wa.s supposedly committed

a robbery in just recently, in Federal HiIl. And it turns

out the guy's on a video at a pizza place' ât the same

time that he's been I.D.'d as having committed thís

robbery.Analibiisimportanttopursue.Andyouhave
to look ât, who ís providing the alibi, how they know what

theyknow,andthecircumstancesregardingit.Butyou
have to investigate it. It's an affirmative defense' I

mean, it, s I am looking at all these documents in this

case, looking at all of the circumstances, the fact that

thís fel-l0w student wasn't interviewed. And I don't' mean

to get ahead of Yoü, Mr. Brown' I just it's

incogitable. I .can't maybe if I interview them, or I

usually would send somebody else to interview them' I
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íntervíew them and no, they're lying. They're on 'the

wrong day. Then Ï/ve done what I'm supposed to do. But,

not to intervieh¡ an alibi witness is just not to

ínterview any wítness is just wrong, not right.

O Okay. And you mentíoned that you had

reviewed some of the documents. I just want to run

through a couple of thern and make sure that you have seen

them. Did you review Asia McClane's affidavit?

A Yes.

O Did you review the letters that Asj-a

McClane wroLe to SYed?

A Yes.

ODidyoureviewthehandwrittennotesofAli
Cornedor who was a faw clerk?

A The law clerk for

O For Cristina Gutierrez '

A Yes, I did.

a And did you revíew the relevant part's of

the sLaLe's closing argument, in which, they discuss the

time when the murder occurred?

A Ríght. The time, I think they put the

time, basically, I'm summarizinq, 2t20 to 2240 in that,

2:36 p.m. I think the decedent was seen leaving the

school, getting a snack at 2220, gettíng in her calt and

then not being seen again.
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O Now, if you were to take my word that the

defense, ME. Syed, was primarily a reasonabl-e doubt

defense. In general, would an alíbi wítness be consistent

with a defense líke that?

A An alibi would be crucial to a defense like

that. Reasonable -- and every case is reasonabl-e doubt' '

That's a standard, the state did the state did not

prove this case beyond a reasonable doubt. Yes, they had

A, B, and c| but that could also be interpreted aS D, E,

and F. The old saying is, is your cup half empty? Is

your cup ha].f fu]t? Same thing, but it' sounds different.

It cre'ates a different mental image' So' when the

argumentisrt'heStatehasn'tprovenitscase'âDalibi'
just like self-defense, is an affirmative defense that

bol-sters the issue of t.he state didn't prove its case. r

mean, I just -- maybe the alibi witness is \^/rong' maybe

thepersonthaL'stheco-defendantislying'butthatis
upforajurytodecide.Andlwasparticularlydisturbed
that the alibi witness \^Ias not even interviewed' I find

that very surPrising'

a Now, obviously, you've never met the alibí

witness.Butbasedonwhatyouknowaboutthea]-ibi
witness from t.hese documents you've revíewed, do you think

thatthatwouldinitiallybeacrediblewitness?
AYes.Imean,thisisnotagirlfriend'
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baby's, you know, mother or something like that, oL

grandmom. Everybody always wants to discredit that. But

this is a fell-ow student who knows thís individual, knows

the parties, has no hidden agenda. I mean, she doesn/t
have any reason to lie. And when she brought hersel-f
forward, it wasn't like, oh, a friend of a friend, gets

somebody to say a lie. I mean, she volunteered. Vrlait a

minute, T saw you at that time. And I think she did it
relat.i-vely shortly after his arrest. So, it's not l-ike
it's a year later that she's miraculously appearing. But
j-t's pretty soon that she woul-d be abl-e to put together
and verify certain information. So, not only shouÌd she

have been i-nterviewed, but certainly if she sounds

if she's as good as what her document sound, the way she

clearly can describe certaín events/ surrounding having
seen Mr. Syed at the library. Then I would predict that
she woul-d probably be very credible in front of a jury.

O And can you think of any strategic reason

why a criminal defense attorney would not even bother to
interview or investigate an al-ibi witness, such âs, Asia
McClane?

A There woul_d be no reason. There would be

no reason not to find out and send an investigat.or to tatk
to this person. Gíve the information now, \^/e have to
get the information well-, actually back then you had to
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give the information to the State. But there was no

follow-up on that, to all-ow the detective to investigate.

And when somebody's in jail' I mean, they're they can

only cal-l collect. Their link to the outside world and

theír case, the defense of their case, is their lawyer and

t.heír family. And most importantly, as far as the defense

of the case is concerned, witnesses or information, their

connection to that ís their attorney. And the attorney's

obligati-on, affirmative obligation, is to invest,igate any

defenses. And an alibi witness being one of the best,

this kind of alibi witness. There are some alibi

wi-tnesses you don't wanL.

O Just a few more questions. I'm going to

ask you about motions for modification of sentence. Ïn a

case like this, in which a defendant receives a very long

sentence. ûühat is your policy about whether you file a

motion for modification of sentence, and how do you file

that?
A You auLomatically file a motion for

modif icat.ion. Why woul-dn't you? I mean, there' s nothíng

to be hurt by doing it. so, it should be automatic.

O And what, if any

A You have a pretty long time to do it, 90

days. I have missed on one or two occasions that 90 duy,

but for bad filing over the years, but.



ACCUSCRI BE S

410- 466-2033

96

TRANSCRI PTION SERVICES
410- 494-7015

ADNAN SYED VS. STATE OF MARYLAND

october 25, 20L2 BEFORE JUDGE MARTIN P. I/ÍELCH

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

I2

13

t4

1-5

16

I7

18

I9

20

ZL

22

23

24

25

O In the case of a very long sentence, is it

possible to have that motion heÌd sub curia?

A Yes. Back in L999, 2000, I'Ít tryíng to

remember when it changed. It use to be that the judge

could hold, to have that motion to modify indefinitely'

coul_d hold it sub curj-a indefinitely. Now, the rule

changed and you have to have ít wíthin five years, a

hearíng on it within five years. But, there's nothing

theret s no harm. There's harm to do, for example, a

three_judgepanelreviewifyouhave20yearsandyou
coul-d get l-ife. There's a harm in going to a t'hree-judge

panel, potential harm. So, there may be a reason not' to

do that. But, there's no reason not to file a motion to

modify.

O And what is the

Whether You can do

advantage of having it. held

that for five Years orsub curia?

lonqer?
A Vüetl, the advantaqe t'o asking the judge to

hold it sub curia is to, maybe a coupJ-e first of all'

calm things down. Put. some distance between event' And

also to show if your client has been infraction free while

incarcerated, has gone to school, has made Some steps of

rehabilit.ation, that that can serve as a basis for a judge

to consj-der modifying his sentence'

O And from your experience, do judges
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generally grant that motion or that request to hold the

motíon sub curia?
A Most do. Every once in a while ' íf a judge

is very strong about a circumstance, a particular case,

they míght not. But most of them hotd it sub curia if you

ask.

AAndregardlessofthejudge'srepuLation'
would you ask anYwaY?

A Absolutely' Why wouldn't you ask? I mean'

what,s the worst thing that could happen? The ans\^/er is

no. You know, it is might as well'

MR.BROWN:I'vegotnofurtherquestionsfor
this witness.

THE COURT: Any cross examination' Ms' Murphy?

MS. MURPHY: Thank Your Your Honor'

CROSS_EXAMINATION

BY MS. MURPHY:

O Hello, Ms' Meade'

A Hello, Ms' MurPhY'

So you were not involved with this case

No.

You didn't have any extensive discussions

IN
O

''99 and 2000?

A

ôY

with the counsel involved at the time?

ANo.IwaswellacquaintedwithCristina
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Gutierrez. Because, when T fírst saw her, when Ï was

clerking for Judge Prevas' and she \^Ias the onl-y woman out

there, doing criminal- defense. so, she was sort of a

semi-mentor, semi-idol, for a while. So, Ï was

O But You didn't have any exLensive

discussions with her about this case?

A Nor no.

Olassumeyoudidn't'haveanydiscussíons
with Judge Quarl-es or Judge Heard about. the case?

A No.

O Did Mr. Brown provide you with just the

transcript of the closíng argument and no other

transcriPts ?

Allookedatsomeot.hertranscriptsbutit'
was mainly going through, he explained the circumstances

andtheevidence,andgoingthrought.hepetitionandhis
supplement.al- Petition .

O But You didn't get all- 35 volumes?

A Oh, no.

A You would remember that' right?

AIwou]-drememberthat.ThereWaSoneother
part..Itwassectionsofitthatlreviewed.

a So, basically the only knowledge you have

of this case is what the Defendant has provided you?

A Right.
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O Now, we tatked a litt']e bit about Alfred

pleas. I/r7e talked about various of fers that clients have

received over the years. And you mentioned that, Yoü

know, you could always go to the judge' In any of those

scenarios, it's correct, ís it not, that the judge has to

accept the Plea?

A Yes. I mean, a judge can sâY' I'm not

qoing to accept that's why I'm saying' the judge get's

involvedinitrbecauseajudgeisgoingtosaylet's
SayiftheSt.atewant'ed25yearsandIwantl.0.Thejudge
might say 20. You know, Lhe judge may saY' I thínk 25 is

fair.
Right. But, ultimately, the judge gets the

A Yes. Wel1, ultimately' actually the

defendant gets the final word because whether or not to

accepttheplea.Buttheyhavetohavetheinformationt'o
be able to know what their choices are and whether or not'

how they should proceed with their respective case ' And

you know, quite frankly, the judge could say 25 and the

State come back the next trial date and SâY, okay, I,1} do

20. I mean, it's a fluid and case-by-case

circumstance

O I understand' What I'm driving at is'

regardless of what is proposed by the St'at'e or the

O

final word?

25
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Defendant, the judge must be in agreement?

A

MS

Yes.

MURPHY: I have no other questions, Your

Honor.

THE COURT: AnY redirect?

MR. BROVüN: Just a follow-uP'

REDTRECT EXAMINATTON

BY MR. BROWN:

O Ms. Murphy asked you about whether you had

anydiscussionswithMs.Gutierrezaboutthiscase.And
you said You did not, correct?

A About this sPecific case' oo'

Did you discuss other legal matters with

Ms

O

Gutierre z ?

A When I --
MS. MURPHY: Objection' Objection'

THE COURT: Sustained'

MR. BROVüN: Okay ' No further questions ' i

THB COURT: Thank You' Ms' Meade'

THE WITNESS: Thank Yoü' Your Honor' 
,

THE COURT: Nice seeing you' You are excused'

(Witness was excused' )

THE COURT: And, Mt' Brown?

MR. BROWN: Your Honor' the that would be our

finarwitness.Theone,rguess,moLionrwouldriketo

ACCUSCRIBESTRANSCRIPTIoNSERVICES
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make woutd be that the trial transcript be incorporated

into this proceeding. Just to put that on the record for

future references to the transcript'
THE COURT: All right. And I assume, Ms'

Murphy, there's no objection?

MS. MURPHY: None, Your Honor'

THE COURT: AII right. So noted'

MR. BRoWN: And with that , if I cou]-d have the

Court's indulgence for just one moment to check with my

client.
THE COURT: Sure.

(Pause. )

MR. BROVüN: And, Your Honor, with that¡ Wê close

the Petitioner's case.

THE COURT: Alt right' Thank you' And' Ms'

Murphy?

MS.MURPHY:YourHonor,IwouldasktheCourt
to incorporate by reference, a letter that was filed with

cristina Gutierrez, on october 5, L999, with the court'

It shou]d be in the court fil-e. I have a copy here, just

for easy reference for the court' But I ask you to

incorporat.e that document by reference

THECOURT:Intothecourtfi]e.Woulditbe
easier just f.or, I think, io, the purposes of review, that

and íf there's no objecti-on, maybe just. introducing it
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as an exhibit
MS. MURPHY: CertainlY, Your Honor'

THE COURT: -- even though there may be some

duplicatíon. That way we're not searching through the

record and ít' coul-d be marked as such.

MS. MURPHY: T CAN dO IhAt.

MR. BROVüN: Your Honor, I have no objection'

THE COURT: All right. And I assume, Ms'

Murphy, this woul-d be State's I, correct?

MS.MURPHY:Yes,YourHonor.ThisísState's
1. And as I stated, Your Honor

THECOURT:Andjustonesecond'sothat'sa
letter to the court from Ms. Gutierrez?

MS.MURPHY:Ibelieveit'salettertothe

State from Ms. Gutierrez, making the State aware of a very

large number of potential alibi witnesses in t'his case '

THECoURT:Andthedateofthatletter,Ms.
Sullivan is?

CLERK: October 4th'

THE COURT z 2000?

CLERK: '99.
THE coURT: .99. So the Court will admit that

into evidence. /

(ûrlhereuPon, State's
Exhíbit No. l- was admitted
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tvls. MURPHY: Thank Your Your Honor. The state

has no witnesses at this time.

THE COURT: OkaY. Argument?

MR.BROWN:YourHonor,I'dliketogothrough
the(inaudible)firstofall,wehavecoveredthree
issues in the course of today's hearing and the hearing

two weeks ago. For all other issues that are raised both

in t.he original post-conviction petition, as wel-1 âs¡ the

supplement, we submit on the record and we don/ t wísh to

waive any of those issues, by virtue of not havíng

discussed them with t.he witnesses presented today'

Firstofallralibiwitness'Thelaw'thelaw
on that is that there is a dut.y to investigate. There's a

duty for a defense att.orney to investigate their cl-ient's

case. And, in addítion, if the attorney does not fulfilt

that duty, that would satisfy the first deficiency prong

of strickl-and vs. washington. As the court is well- aware'

there is al-so a prejudice prong from Strickland vs '

Vüashington.

Thequestionthoughisnotwhethertheerror
would have changed the course of the trial but it's

whether the error undermines our confidence in the jury's

verdict. And atl of this is in our papers ' for more

citations to that effect '25
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So what did we prove with regard to the alibi

witness? We]l, first, after Syed was arrested, he

received two l_etters f rom Asia Mcclane. He díd not

sol-icit these letters. These letters came to him right

out of the blue. In those l-etters, which are in evidence,

this alibi wi-tness reminds Syed that she recalls being

wíth him on the day of the murder, at approximately the

time of the murder.

we can prove that syed communicated the fact of

thís alibi witness to Gutierrez. And the way that we

prove that. is through the affidavit of Al-i Cornedor, which

is also introduced into evidence. Mr. cornedor has

verified the note, that was found in Gutierrez's file.

He's confirmed that it was his handwriting. He's

confirmed that. he visited Syed and those are his notes

from syed. And he,s also stated in that affidavit, that

it wouldn't have been the normal course of his employment,

working for Ms. Gutierrez, that those notes woul-d have

been turned over to her. That essentially, he was an

extension of her when he visited Mr. Syed

so, we also know that at trial, Asia McClane was

never call-ed as a witness. The State has just íntroduced

some evidence. That's a list of potential alibi

wiLnesses. I would also note that Asia McClane's name

does not. appear on that list.. There's a huge number of
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people that appear on that

McClane on that list.
list. You wilt not find Asia

Sowhathappened?Syedgetsconvicted.And

afterwards,hedíscusseswhathappened.HediscussesAsia
McClane with Rabía Chaudry, who you heard testify two

weeksago.IwouldsubmittotheCourtthatMs.Chaudry
was an exceptionally reliable and competent witness '

She'sanattorney.She'samemberof,Ibe}ieve,iL'sthe
virginiaBar.shersworkedforHomerandsecurityrother
law enforcement agencíes. she testified about exacLly how

shelearnedaboutAsiaMcClaneand.aboutexactlyhowshe
obtained that affidavit from Asia McClane '

Significantly, that affidavit puts Syed in the

library, speaking to Asia McClane' and her boyfríend' and

her boyfriend's friend at precisely 2236 or at least

during a span that covers that time' So' it is a complete

alibi to this murder case ' We also know that she was

nevercontactedbytheDefensefromthat'affidavit.
Syed made every effort he possibly could to get

Gutierrez,sattentionwithregardtothis.Hewrotehera
letter. There r^iere correspondence f rom t'he f amily' which

Ms.Chaudryhelpedthemdraft,becausetheyWereunableto
draft it themselves ' Essentiatly' begging her to raise

the Asj.a McClane issue. For whatever reason, she did not

do it.

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES
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Now, there hlas a hearsay objection to that

affídavit coming in. And one of the arguments that f

would like the Court to consider ís because thís issue is

framed as a faílure to ínvestigate, that affidavit should

also come in, because ít's not hearsay. It's not offered

to necessarily prove what is written ín the affidavit '

Rather, the fact ís, that that affidavit was out there and

those statements Were out there. And, therefore, the

attorney had the duty to at least investigate it. Not

necessarity, it's not necessarily provable in the sense

that thi-ngs would have t.urned out that way. But at the

very least, Cristina Gutierrez had to investigate such an

alibi witness.
vrle heard from Kevín urick about the same alibi

witness. Kevín urick spoke to her on the phone. we heard

from him that she lives in Oregon now' Your Honorr w€

tried and I submit, as an officer of the court, Your

Honor, has granted a certification in which we attempted

to get her here. For whatever reason, she evaded service

in oregon. we could not produce her. But' we know from

Kevin urick that she's real . That she exists. arrat she

called him up. sure, she said that she felt coerced or

pressured int.o signing that affidavit' BuL' by saying

that, she, s acknowledging that she díd, in fact, sign that

affidavit.
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And I would submit to the Court that the

overwhelming evidence is that, she was not coerced. She's

the one who wrote two letters, that came out of the blue,

and that Mr. Syed received whíle in the Baltimore City

Detention Center.

You heard from Ms. Meade that this alibi witness

would have dovetailed perfectly with the defense, with the

insufficiency of the evidence defense t or ffm sorry,

excuse me. With a reasonable doubt defense' which j-s what

Gutierrez employed at the trial . You know, i-t's hard to
fathom why any defense attorney would noL, at the very

l-east, followed up with this wi-tness. At the very least,
send an investigator out to talk to her. Don't just

dismiss it out of hand, because this could have been the

best thing they had going in that defense case.

The plea issue. That's the second major issue

we've raised. The l-aw is that, a defense attorney must be

constitutionally effective in the plea bargaining process.

There's a couple supreme court cases that came out

recently, Lafl-er and Frye, which although they don't touch

on thís specific issue, they do underscore the importance

of defense counsel in the plea bargaining process.

And another thing that those cases sây, those

cases note that something like 95 percent of all cases end

up in a plea bargain. So that in many respects, the plea

ACCUSCRIBES
470- 4 6 6-2033

TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES
4r0-494-7015
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bargaining phase ís

actual trial phase

percentage of cases

In terms

arguably more ímPortant than the

itself. Because, such a high

are resolved that way.

of the prejudice prong with respect to

THB COURT: I have to ask, though, unless I'm

míssíng something, Mr. Brown. What evidence ís there at

al-l in this case, that there were any plea negotiations?

That one was offered either by the state, sought by the

Defense t of that the judge became involved?

MR. BROWN: There is none, Your Honor' And

that's the problem. The problem is, you know, number one,

is you heard Ms. Meade sâY, the defense attorney has a

duty to at least find out what the plea offer is. Mr.

syed was 17-years-old at the time. He could not make an

intelligent choice. The most diffícult choice in the

whole process of a críminal trial, do you plead guilty or

do you go to trial? How can you possíb1y make an

intelligent choice with that if you don'L even know what

the plea offer is. what's more, Mf. Syed has testifíed

and credíbly, and it's entirely believable, that he díd

ask her. He said, find out what my plea is. He did it

before trial and he did it after the mistríal. what

cl-ient doesn't say that.?

Again, Yoü heard from Ms. Meade, that,s entirely
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typical. You're waiting around in the Baltimore city

lock-up and everyone is talking about him, what's your

offer? Vühat's your offer? Vfhat does the State want' from

you? so, the fact that Mr. syed woufd convey that to him'

Here he is, the only one in there who hasn't heard what

his plea offer is. so, not only does she not fol-low his

instructions/ she does not go to the state and talk about

it. And, again, You heard testimony from Mr.. Urick, t.hey

wereneverapproachedbyGutierrezaboutit.Butwhat's
more,isshereportsbacktosyedthatthereisnoplea
offer.

YourHonorrl'fitsureisfamiliarwíththe
Merzbacher case, whi-ch I believe just went up t'o the 4t'h

Circuit. There \^IaS an artic].e in the paper yest'erday

about it. In the Merzbacher case, ât least she at

least Ms. Gutierrez pursued a plea offer' She took that

first step and where she failed was not takíng the second

stepandconveyingtheofferbackt'oherclient'Vúell'
here, she was even more ineffect'ive, because she didn't

even take that first step. Her client asked her to get

hís plea offer and she disregards that request and comes

back and lies to him'

Sorhopefullythatanswersyourquesti-on'But'
you,reabsolutelycorrect.NothingfromtheStateabout
it'They,vebeenstraightforwardaboutit.Notranscript25
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about it. No judge talking about it. completely absent

from thís case. And you're talkíng about a 17-year-old

who's facing a life sentence .--
THECOURT:Wouldn'tthatbeontherecord

woul-dn't that be on the record somewhere?

MR. BROWN: Your Honor

THE COURT: I mean, I know

MR. BROVüN: I have scoured the record' This is

actually, this document I have, it's a summary' Just a

summary of the transcriPt, it's 75 pages long' You know'

T-.whenMs'Meadewasconsulted,that'swhatshesaid.
Shesaid,gobackandlookagainattherecord.Andthere
is nothing on the record' I asked Mr' Urick' or Ms'

Murphy asked Mr. Urick' were there any discussions with

any judge about this at any time' He said' no' And I

propose to you and Your Honor knows this

THECOURT:Sowhatwehavethen'lassume'ís

theallegation,orthetestimonyofyourclient,thathe
asked Ms. Gutierrez?

MR. BROWN: That's correct'

THECOURT:Andthat''sallthereis'correct?
MR. BROVüN: WelI' You know' wê f iled a

supplement,.Vüetriedtoint'roduceotherevidence,alíe
det.ectortest,Lothiseffect,andtheCourtfoundthat
wasinadmissible.ButTproposethathis,noton}ywashe
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a credible witness but his statement about this is

entirel-y believabl-e. And Ms. Meade conf Írmed that. Ms.

Meade, she talked about, Yoü know, the guys sitting around

at lock-up and that's what they tal-k about. And she's use

to it al-l- the tíme. They come out, h.y, what's my offer?

Vrlhat. does the State want from me? She said, that's how

they ask it.
So that, for him to ask that was entirely

consistent. Moreover, we're talking about a case in which

there was a mistriaf, where he had the opportunity to see

what the trial looked like. And he had the opportunity to

hear the main witness against him, Jay vüi1ds' on the

wit.neÈs stand, t.he co-conspirator, basically standing up

there, incriminating him.

SorYourHonorrlproposethatitisentirely
credibl-e testimony by Mr. syed. But, based on what Ms.

Meade said., even if he didn't ask that, she would have

Gutierrez would have had an affirmative duty to 90 find

out, at least, Lay the options on the t.able for your

cl-ient, here at this most critical junct'ure of a criminal

case.

Finally, Your Honor, the motion for modification

issue. You know, Ms. Meade testified and obviously Your

Honor is very experienced in that. But it is and should

be standard practice that when a defendant receives a very
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long sentence, at least, the defense attorney' fíIe a

motíon for modification, had it held sub curía' Allow the

defendant some time, number one, for things to coor off'

And,numbertwo,toshowthathecanrehabílitatehímself,
thathecanfollowtheru].es.Thathecandowhatthey
ask of him in the DOC' He can come back' Ms' Meade is

correctrnow/lbelieve--I'mnotsurewhetherit'sfive
yearsortenyearsthattheyhavetodothat,toactivate
themot.ion.However,itissufficienttimeforthemto
comebackwithsomecertificates,wíthSomeletters.And
perhaps get that sentence reduced a little bit' Mr' Syed

testífiedthat.evenifhissenLencecamedownfromlife,
plus30rdowntoliferwhílethatwoufdnotnecessarily
meanhe,dgetoutearlier.Itwouldmeanthathecou}dgo
toalowerlevelofsecurityandhecould,âtleast,goto
school.He,dperhapshaveaccesstomorebooks,something
likethat',whilehespendstherestofhislifeinprison.
So that's that issue' A pretty simple issue'

We've also raised the issue of cumulative

ineffectiveassistanceofcounsel'Youknow'thesetwo
issues that we raíse, in a lot' of ways they go hand-in-

hand. And, Mr. Syed, did an excellent job of articulating

that. when he was on the witness stand'

It was apparent to Mr' Syed that his chance of

at his trial relied on having an atibi' There
prevailing
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was evidence against hím. And, he had to be able to show

where he was when thís murder took place. There was an

alibi witness. There was an al-ibi witness who was wílling

to talk. But hís defense attorney completely blew that

off. As hÍs hopes were dwindling, mentally, he turned

more toward the plea deal. Yet, she failed him again.

Because she never fol-lowed up on that plea deal. So the

Lwo additives that he had for resolvíng this case, trial

and guilty p1ea, they r^rere both ruined by his lawyer. His

lawyer, who has been disbarred. Vüho, this Court is well

aware of, there were scores of clients whom she cheated

out of their money.

THE COURT: WelI, I, I -- the Court is unaware

of that. And

MR. BROWN: Okay. Well, You heard testimony

from Mr. Syed's mother about those interactions'

THE COURT: Yeah. But Lt in all faj-rness, Mr'

Brown, to the l-ate Ms. Gutierrez.
MR. BROWN: I undersLand your point, Your Honor,

without you saying it. she certainly had some great

moments aS a defense at.torney. But, I think the record,

that we have est.ablished is that, she also had some not so

great moments. And, this was one of them. Thank You,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: I didn't mean to cut you off.
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MR. BROWN: Ilüel-I, no, I mean/ that's

THECOURT: I I--
MR. BROWN: That's the gist of

THE COURT: I'm unaware

court has some knowledge of Ms. Gutierrez may have been

disbarred,buttheCourtisunawarespecíficallyasto
whatmayhavebroughtaboutthatdisbarment.

MR.BROVüN:YourHonorrinourpetiti'onrthat's
discussed.AndtherearesomefootnotesandSome
citatíonsprovided,shouldt.heCourtcaretodelvemore
into that.

THE COURT: Okay' Thank Voü' Mr' Brown'

MR. BROWN: Thank Your Your Honor'

THE COURT: Ms ' MurPhY?

MS. MURPHY: Thank Voü' Your Honor' I have

fítedwitht'hecourtandprovidedMr.Brownacopyofa
writtenresponse.But,Idofeelthatitisimportantto
spendjustamomenttalkingaboutthefact.softhecase,
YourHonor.SimplybecausetheDefend.ant'tookthestand
todayandclaímedthatthiscase].ivedanddiedina2lr
minute time

that.
frame. And this case was so much more than

Thisr^iasoneoftheearliestcases'Ibelieve'
to incorporate the use of a cell phone and cell tower

records.Andthiscasetrulydemonst.ratedthepowerof



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

I

t- 15

ADNAN SYED VS. STATE OF MARYLAND

october 25, 2At2 BEFORE JUDGE MARTIN P. VüELCH

ACCUSCRIBESTRANSCR]PTIoNSERVICES
410- 466-2033 410- 494-7015

9

10

1-1

I2

13

1,4

15

T6

t7

1-8

T9

20

21,

22

23

24

25

those records. Essentially, those records, not only did

the cell phone records identífy many vital witnesses in

thís case but they corroborated everything that was saíd'

vühat the witnesses said matched the records and what the

records said matched the witnesses. And it all fit into

place,andJayVlildswascentraftoallofthis.Andyou
can, t emphasize strongly enough, that there's no way that

Jay Vüilds could concoct a story like this and know to put

himself in specific places at. specific times, because some

cell- tower, some\^there, was going to record that he was on

thephonewithsomebody'It'sjust'simplynotfathomable'
Infact,JayVüildswascross_examinedforfivedaysbyMs.
Gutierrez in this trial ' And' clearly' based on the

verdict,thejurystillfoundhimcredibleinspiteof
that..

Yes,thecallat2z36wasasignificantcall,

butthereweremanyothers.EveniftheDefendanthad
managed t.o accounL for some alibi at t.hat particular point

inLime,there'sbeennoshowingstowhataffectthat
wouldhaveinlightoft'heotherevidence.Itwouldn,t
explainwhyhe'sinLeakinParkwithJayliüildsatT:00on
the night that Hae Min Lee is murdered' That is the

strength of t'he State's evidence in t'his case'

IthinkifthisCourtcoulddecidehispost_

convictíonenti-relyontheprejudicepronga}one,Twill
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address each argument individually. But, I think there's

simply no showing that the outcome of the case woul-d have

been any different.
There's a suggestíon there's simply no physícal

evidence in this case. That's not true. The autopsy

report revealed that Hae Min Lee had been brutally

strangled. she had bruising to the back of her head,

which entirely corroborates Jay Vlilds' statements that the

Defendant told him that this occurred in her car. The

back of her head would have been pressed against the

window. Jay lrïilds also testified that this Defendant tol-d

hím t.hat as she struggled, she broke the signal switch on

the steering column. And Yês, in fact, the sígnal switch

in Hae Min Lee's car was dangling from the steering

column.

There was a map book found in the back seat of

Hae Mín Leers cart an ABC map book. It was, as I said, in

t.he back seat. And f rom that book was ripped the page

bearing the map of Leakin Park, the particular section

where the victim was buried. On the back cover of the map

book, Your Honor/ was the Defendant's left palm print.

The evidence in this case speaks volumes. This

hras a strangulation that resulted in a disappearance of a

beautiful- young woman. It's an unusual- set of facts, Your

Honor, even from Baltimore city. And I think Mr. urick
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did a good job of conveying that. This is not a case \^re

see every day. And for that reason, MS. Meade's testimony

is utterly unhelpful. You had an entíre cross-sect'ion of

people, students from Woodlawn High School. For the most

part, there's no evidence that any of these kids were

anything but good kids. Honor students, athletes, all

involved aS witnesses, and aS our Defendant. These are

young, college-bound kids from good homes. It's símply

just not your typical case. And what Ms. Meade does or

does not do in her cases on a day-to-day basis in

Baltimore Cíty, gives this Court no guidance on what may

have hapPened in this case.

With respect to the alibi witness, the

Strickland case discusses the duty to investigate and does

st.ate,..Thatstrategicchoicesarevirtually
unchal-lengeable. Even without.an investigation, choices

are reasonable to the extent the professional judgment

supports the communicat.ion. counsel has a dut'y to make a

reasonable decision that makes a particular invest'igation

unnecessary. Counsel- must aSSeSS in all the circumstances

and the court must apply a heavy measure of deference to

Counsel's judgments. "

YourHonor,Wêcan]ookatwhattherecords

shows, whaL cristina Gutierrez did do, was prepare an

alibi defense as suggested. She would onJ-y do so based on



118

1-

2

3

4

5

6

1

B

9

10

11

I2

13

I4

15

16

I1

18

T9

20

2I

22

¿5

24

25

ADNAN SYED VS. STATE OF MARYLAND
October 25, 20L2 BEFORE JUDGE MARTIN P. VIELCH

informatíon provided by her client, provided by other

sources, other fact gathering that she'd done. And what

that information suggest.s, and if Your Honor looks closely
at the letter that was fil-ed, that I've admitted as

State's Exhibit 1. She identified more than 80 potential
alibi witnesses ín that letter. And she states, "That on

January 13, 1999, Adnan Masud Syed, attended Vloodlawn High

School- for the duration of the school day. At the

duration of the school d.y, the Defendant remained at t.he

hiqh school until the beginning of his track practice."
That vvas also consistent with what t,he Defendant told to

the Bal-timore County detective, as he conceded here in hís

testímony today. He saíd nothing about attending a

library, going to the J-ibrary after school .

And these detectives, as h/as brought out in
testimony today. He \^/as called by a police officer,
January 13th, the night Hae Min Lee disappeared, he

received a phone call-. Then again, in the days and weeks

to follow, he was interviewed and that's when he said he

attended track practice t.oday. So for him to stand before

this CourL and say that it had not been apparent to him

that he needed to account specifically for his whereabouts

is simply disingenuous. I find that not to be credible at

all.
And the actions that Ms. Gutierrez t.ook are

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES
410- 466-2033 410-494-7015
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entirely consistent with that. She tried to fashíon an

alibí defense out of the information she had. Information

that was consistent with other evídence that was provided.

And the fact that Asía McClane contradicts the stated

atíbi of her own clíent, would be the basis for a

reasonable judgment by Gutíerrez to not further

investigate.
Now, assuming that her refusal to ínvestigate

that witness. I'm not conceding that's deficient' But if

\^re assume for the sake of argument that that's the case,

we must consider Veeney (phonetic) vs. Warden (phonetic) '

Because in this case, the Defendant has failed to produce

this witness at this post-conviction hearing. And in

Veeney, ..4 proffer is simply not persuasive than the

plain, s testimony would have affected the outcome ín this

case. "
Her affidavit is not effective in thís regard.

In fact, this is clearly a witness that the state would

have spent some time cross-examining with respect t'o bias,

memory, motíve, credibitity. And I'11 point out a few

things in these letters, Your Honor, that the Defense

provided both in their petition and as exhibits during the

course of this hearing.

Atthecompletionoft.hehandwrittenletter,
dated March I, Iggg, Ms. McClane actually writes, "If you
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the

She

hrere in the líbrary for a while, tell- the po1ice.,,
certainly thís witness needs to be cross-examined about
whether shet s even certain, because that doesn, t convey

any certainty at al-l. She's asking him, if you h¡ere in
That l-etter also conveys a very clear bias.
know, "ff so¡ I will try my best to help you

account, for sgme of .your unwitnessed, unaccountabl-e, lost
time f rom 2 z 15 to 8; 00 p. m. , January l-3th. . Which is al_so

interestÍng because t.he Defendant testified, you know, he

really d.idn't think he had t.o account for his time in that
time f rame. This l-etter is maíled to him, he says right
after he's arresLed, I believe, yes. And someone who

really isnt t even involved in the case, someone who never

came forward as a witness, is aware of the time that he

needs to account for.
I think that it brings to light how

sensational this case was among the students at Woodl-awn.

It was constantly discussed. It was what everyone was

talking about, students and teachers al-ike. And I think
the record is replete wit.h examples to support that along

with Ms. McClane's lett.ers. And Ms. McClane seems to be

eager to interject hersel-f into this case. In the typed-
written l-etter, dated March 2nd, I believe, she asks a lot
of very pointed questíons of the Defendant. She wants to

'1 '

know specifically where he was that day. Vühat he tol-d the

library.
says, You

f
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police. And then she explains, "You see, I have an

analytical mind. T want to be a criminal psychologist for
the FBI one day." And she goes on to ask some unusual

questions. In partícular, "Vühy doesnt t he have any

marki-ngs on his body from Hae's struggle?" This witness

ís seemingly interjecting herself wel-l into the facts of

the investigat.ion that., by all counts, she's not ínvolved

with.
So, as I was saying, Your Honor, if somehow this

Court finds that Ms. Gutierrez was deficient. And, agaín,

the State does not concede that. There's no way that

Petj-tioner can satisfy the second prong of Strickland

which is prejudice. There's absolutely no showing,

because he has not produced Asia McClane, that Asia

McClane's availability at trial would have in any way

affected the outcome of the case.

Addressing the motion for modification, Your

Honor. First I'll begin by st.atíng, there símply is no

precedent t.o indicate that a failure to ask to have a

mot.ion for modification hel-d sub curia is ineffective

assistance of counsel-. The original motion was filed in a

t.imely matter and was denied. So this is clearly noL a

(inaudible) situation where the court did not have an

opportunity t.o consider it. f n thj-s situation, the

Petiti-oner simply cannot remot.ely show prejudice. He has
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not cal-l-ed Judge Heard to testify. To ask Judge Heard, if
she wouJ-d have heLd the motion sub curia. And to
establ-ish what, if âoy, re]íef she might have granted.
so, the only evidence we have is in the record. And that
indicates quite to the contrary.

we can r-ook to the record of sentencíng in this
case' Your Honor. And what happened at sentencing was
that, Mr. Dorsey had asked the court to consider this
case, al-most as a second-degree case. He said, consider
it as a cri-me of passion, your Honor, in right of the
Defendant's age and his emotional_ state. And the court
stated, "r disagree with your counsel-. This wasn't a

crime of passion. The evidence meant premeditated with
mali-ce and forethought¡ âs we say in t.he l_aw. That means
you thought about it. The evj-dence hras, there was a plan
and you used that. intel-l-ect. you used t.hat physical
strength. You used that charismat.i_c ability of your's
that made you the president of the what was the king or
the prince of your prom? you used that to manipulate
people. And even today, I think you continue to
manipulate, even those that ]ove you, as you did to the
victim. You manipulated her to go wíth you t.o her death.,,

so, even on the date of sentencirg, Judge Heard
had ample evidence of the very things that most defendants
would bring to light at. a motion for modification and she
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did consíder these. Stating, ..Both you And the person

whose life you choose to end, unl-ike so many others, had

the worl-d in front of you. Not only did you have support
of family, but you had the intell_igence, the i-ntellect,
the physical strength and the ability, to do anything you

wanted. "
And I find it interesting today, your Honor,

that even in his testimony, Defendant concedes, had he

known that his sentence woul-dn't be reviewed, he wouldn't
have gone through all of these programs. That was why he

was doing it. Again, it's the same manipulation,
MR. BROVüN : Ob j ection, Your Honor . He never

said that.
THE COURT: ft's argument.

MS. MURPHY: And noh/ at this point, Your Honor,

ï'l-l address the failure to seek a plea agreement. I
think on this argument we have to address the Defendant's

credibility. f've touched on it, but I believe what you

heard from the Defendant here today is not credibl-e.
Keeping in mind, that he's no longer cl-oaked in ínnocence,

as he ís at trial-. He stands before us convicted of
first-degree murder, in a particularly heinous case. The

acts involved are replete with deceit, lying, strangled a

woman to death and buried her body so that her family
might not ever know what became of her.

ACCUSCRTBES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES
4L0-466-2033 410-4 94-1015
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The records are crear, he drove her car around
with her body .stuffed in the trunk, while he and Jay vrrilds
l-ooked for marijuana and sought to get high. And as he
was getting high, he bragged to Jay Wilds, ..I killed
somebody with my bare hands.,,

Even before that, the record exemplifies the
deceit that he emproyed with his only famiry in trying to
maintain his relatíonship with the victim in this case.
He utilized people from his mosque and other friends t.o
hide his' activities. one of the very reasons that this
relationship h/as so compricated and probr-ematic for both
the Delendant and the victim. As Judge Heard said,
manipulative, from start to finish. His testimony here
today was not credible.

Particurarly when your Honor, has a cr-ear
idea that this case garnered a l-ot of attention. There
was lots of specul-ation and some media coverage at. the
time. But

for him to acknowledge that he was called by t.he poJ_ice,
on the very dates she disappeared. And t.hen again
interviewed by the policer âs to his whereabouts on that
date, to say that he wasn't aware he had to account for
those whereabouts, is just entireJ_y disingenuous. And the
iourt had the opportunity to observe how evasive he was as
the stat.e asked him questions. He simply refused to
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answer the State's question at one point.

The Defense is relyíng heavily, and has since

the beginning of this petitíon, on Merzbacher. It's not

coincidental- that this petition comes on the heels of that

ca.se. Although that case ís still yet to be resolved.

And, although Counsel has produced no concrete evidence of

when Ms. Gutierrez was disbarred, as the Court has pointed

out, or any circumstances around that. Vühat's clear is

that there has simpty been no evidence shown that her

disbarment. had anything to do wit.h this case. That it'

occurred that even if anything that was going on at the

tíme of this case, Ied to her disbarment. There simply is

no factual record of that.
And the parallels between Merzbacher and this

case are pretty sfim. About the only thing that they had

in cofiìmon was that they were high profile cases and that

Ms. Gutierrez represented the Defendants. Merzbacher was

a case with multiple victims. victíms who didn't come

forward for years, and years, and years, after they were

sexually assaulted bY a teacher'

THECOURT:Andjust'iflcould,though,andyou

can chime in for a second if you need to, Mr' Brown'

Although I was on the bench at the tíme, Merzbacher, there

was Some evidence that there was an Offer, correct?

MS.MURPHY:InterestingthattheCourtsays
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that. There r^ras evidence that an of fer was discussed in

an ín-chambers meeting between counsel-. Whether it was a

firmly conveyed offer or whether it was simply brought up-

THE COURT: But there was some scent.

MS. MURPHY: Ríght. ft was brought up and

discussed. And that truly distinguishes Merzbacher from

this case. Because ín this case, there's simply no

evidence of any offer whatsoever and that's undisputed.

THE COURT: Okay. And, Mr. Brown, íf you want

to interject now, you can' or you can save it for your

rebuttal-, if you wish.

MR. BROVüN: f ' ll save it .

THE COURT: Just don't forget. I'm sorry, Ms'

Murphy.

MS. MURPHY: Oh, that's all right, Your Honor'

But., Merzbacher was the kind of case where it's

foreseeabl-e that the State míght entertain plea

negotiations, because of the nature of the case, the

multiple víctims, and the length of time that had

transpired from when the crimes occurred-

There is no constituti-onal right to a plea

offer, Your Honor. And I think Counsel has raised two

recent Supreme Court opinions, both Lafler v. Cooper and

Missouri v. Frye. Both which deal with t.he

responsibilities of counsel in a plea negotíation case.
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Both cases must be distinguished from where we
are today. Because, in each of those cases, plea offers
had been extended. Tn one case, Lafrer, the defendant
rejected an offer that was extended, based on bad advice.
And in the other case, the defense counser fair_ed to
convey an offer before it lapsed.

So, agai-n, we're in an entirely different
.situation. But the court in Lafrer points out, and I
believe this is very important. The court stat.es, .'rt is
of course true, the Defendants have no right to be offered
a pÌea' nor a federal right that the judge accept it. ïf
no plea offer is mader or a prea dear- is accepted by a
defendant, but rejected by the judge, the issue raised
here simply does not arj-se.,,

Not onry has petitioner not estabr-ished that
there's a deficiency in that regard, your Honor. But
there's absolut.eJ-y no showing of prejudice. To att.empt to
show prejudice, petitioner wourd have to show that the
state woul-d have conveyed an offer, what it might have
conveyed, what it. woul-d have conveyed, and thatrs bearing
in mind the high-profile nature of this case. The nature
of the facts. rt's particularly a compelling and heinous
crime. The premeditation invotved. r mean, Mr. urick so
accurately stated, this \^ras not a run of the mill, first-
degree homicide, if there is such a thing. This was
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simply not it.
Furthermore, petitioner has not shown that the

Defendant wourd have accepted such an offer or íf any
court wour-d have accepted it. Judge Quarles and Judge
Heard have not been asked, what, if ânv, offer wour_d you
have given in this case? vühat , if âDy, offer wour-d you
have accepted in this case? Everything that has been
presented, even this testimony of Ms. Meacie, which is why
the state noted its cont.inuing objection. rtrs just
speculation.

ï think what is c-r-ear, is that throughout this
case, Your Honor, the Defendant mai_ntained his or^/n

innocence- r do think it's wort.h pointing out, after the
first tria], after both Ms. Gutierrez and the Defendant.
have an opportunity to see armost the entirety of the
state/s case. The case ended in a mistriar-. And there
was a bail hearing right aft.er that mistrial. petitioner
was present. and Ms. Guti_errez stated, '.vr]e fel_t conf ident
about the first trial. Arr the post-t.riar interviews with
the jury has certainry supported the confi-dence in that.
There is no reason to be afraid of a second triar_ from Mr.
Syed' s part. ,,

ï think that speaks volumes about the tenure of
what was going between attorney and c1ient, the decision
moving forward, and the fact that thís Defendant was

ACCUSCRTBES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES410- 466-2033 410_ 494_7015
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maintaining his j-nnocence. His own statements at his
sentencing speak, and support the not.ion, that he wíshed
to assert his right to a trial. He stated, "since the
begínning, I have maintained my innocence. And I don't
know why people have said the things that they have said
that I have done ¡ or that they have done. I have

maintaíned my innocence from the beginning. And to my

family and to those who have bel-ieved in me since the
beginni-ng, I would just' like them to know that it is for a

reason. "
He also stated his intention to pursue an appeal

and his desire for yet another chance in court. He's now

attempting to assert, 10 years after the sentencírg, that
sentencirg, that what he reall-y wanted back in 2000, was

an opportunity t.o plead guilty. And that contention is
simply not credible, Your Honor. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you, Ms. Murphy. And any

rebuttal, Mr. Brown?

MR. BROWN: Thank Voü, Judge. A few points.
The State is apparently raising t.he argument that it was

strategic, strategic work by Cristina Gutierrez, not to
investigate an alíbi witness. Because somehow that alibi
wi-tness wou]d have conflícted with the B0 other alibi
witnesses that. were listed in the letter to the State.

First of all, the l-etter sent to the State which
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would have been an alibí notice of alibí witnesses, is
not evidence in the case. So, therefore, there woul_d be

no reason why a defense counsel- would be afraid that by

interviewing another alibi witness, they might produce

some kind of evidence that contradicts the evidence of
those B0 other people. Vüith al-l- due respect to Ms.

Murphy, to say there was a strategíc decision made not to
investigate an alibi witness is I fínd that hard to
fathom.

Second, talking about the case Veeney that Ms.

Murphy cíted and other cases about this, where there's a

failure to produce an alíbi witness. The difference
between those cases and this case, is in thís case¡ we

have a contemporaneous statement by the atíbi wítness.

She was saying thíngs at the time when the trial woul-d

have happened. So \^te do have a good idea of what. she

would have said, had she gone to trial. If we let's
say we did succeed and we got her in here today, 10 years

l-at.er, what she might say now, 10 years laLer, is afar
less val-ue than what she woul-d have said 1-0 years ago.

And I would even submit to the court, that the only thing
realty mat.ters is what she would have said then. It
doesn't matter what. Asia McClane might say or not say

right now. So, I think that's a litt.le misleading. And I
t.hink those cases that she's referring to, talk about



witnesses who are call-ed to provide a after-the-fact
statement as to what they wouLd testify about. Andattempt to do so t.hrough proffer, through affidavit,rather than through r-ive testimony at a post_conviction
hearinq.

Second of all, moving on to the plea j_ssue.
Merzbacher and Syed do have something
they have in

r_n colnmon. And what
cornmon is that they, re both

the attorney, Cristina
a case in which

Gutierrez, was determined to take ahigh-profi j-e

beforer she

case to trial-. ln Merzbacher, as I saidat least did take that first step
that first. step is where

plea offer, but after
and got a

she failed.Because she

Again, here,
didn, t convey the plea offer to her cl-ient.

'h¡e have a cl-ient who requests
yet her error
that process.

a plea offer
was in not even taking that first step in

THE COURT:

MR. BROWN:

THE COURT:

the only evidence of

But you

Yes, your

And aqain,
Honor.

f guess the question is,
that, is the testimony of thePetitioner as to that request.

Ì¡üel_l_ r that
. Meade.

MR. BROWN:

our expert witness, Ms

and t.he corroboration
that that., s
That when

by
Who saidentirely consistent with her experience.

defendants are sittinq around in the lock-up¡ that's a
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common thing that they tal_k
reasonab-l-e to expect that a
request.

And that it is
wouLd make such

about.

cl-ient
a

But,
on witness who

THE

wasnt t

Yout re correct. There, s
heard him say that, your

coURT: okay. r wanted to

But, Ms. Meade, s experience is that

Do, you know,

Honor.

make sure I

add-

MR. BROüüN: yes, that is correct. Andapparentfy' and rrm not sure if this is the statersargument or noL. But, if they are sawour-d nor orrer a prea in ,;" .;;.:"i'ïj::ï::ï:::::"
testi-mony pretty clearly, demonstrated that that might notnecessarily be the case' And certainry, your Honor, candraw from your experience on the bench as to whethersomething like that wour_d happen with a 17_year_o'd kid,with no crimj-nal history whatsoever.

never had

if someone

think she

quoter..Explore
the Defendart, s

possible plea negotiat ions
behal f, may fail_ the first

a case in which she coul_d not get alike Ms. Gutierrez wanted a plea,
could have gotten one.

failure to,
and deals
prong of

she has

pÌea. And

on

certainÌy, r

ïn terms of the I ¡r^¡ you know, again ï want toread some quotes from our supplement ast.he pJ-ea. Cases have found
:-ssue of

an attorneyr s
to this

ACCUSCRTBES T470- 4 66_2033
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Strj-ckl-and when particuLar circumstancesprevailing practice standards, show thatcompetent attorney would have done so.,,the supplement, cited in Newman vs. Vasbi6th Circuit Case.

of the case and
a reasonably
Thatrs page g of
nder, which i_s a

Also cited there is Freund vs. Butterworth,"ExpJ-oring possibr-e pJ-ea negotlations is an important. partof providing adequate representation of a criminalcl-ient.,, Mason and ï,rm sorry/ thatrs at an 11thcircuit case' And then there's a 5th circuit case, Masonvs' va.com (phonetic), ..ïneffective 
assistance in part dueto counser-'s faiÌure to plea bargain when his client mayhave benefitted from plea bargaining.,,

And then there's a quoLe a-r-so from a book aboutthe professiona-r- responsibility as a criminal lawyer, ..rfthe nature of the case warrants it, defense counsel shoul_dexpJ-ore prea discussions with the prosecutor.,, so, rthink those cases do go right to the lega-l j_ssue ofwhether the first pronq of strickr_and
issue 

*--¿vr'drrcr ls satisfied by thls

And in the test for the prejudice is articur_atedin a Maryland case cal_led Wil_liams vs. State , 326 Md 367 ,at 379. rt says, ..A defendant need not est.ablish that hedefinitely would have accepted a plea offer. All that isrequired, is that the toLarit.y of the evidence supports an

ACCUSCRIBES T470- 466_2033
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1n f e t ence tha t the out come mav I Iha
we have been d l- fd he beên f ul I f erentv and a c c tuTa e l v l-n f o rme d

And tha t s the prob I em we haVC hvou VE q t e re 1 s aqa 1 no a 1 l ye Iar o d k i d Wi th ab
l- n th

s oI ute I v no expe ]-e r l_mi na l j u t i r enceS Ã s \/
J S t em b

b i e J- nq f orce d t kgqe S t dec i s ].
o ma e theon o f h i S l i f e And that S whFrye are imp

ê re I a t I er andort ant tha t rh hôv J. qhI J- qht th l_arquabI \/
J b S J. s thee T th l- n k the \/J frô e rred to 1 tcr i t l_ ca l ha

a S rhe mo S tp ò e o t a pro s e t t_cu on Th e de ]- l-pI ead J- I c S on whe ther t9ru tv oT t o qo t t t_
o

o r a I
And what is suppose to happen, as Ms. Meadearticur-ated, there's suppose to be some options for him tochoose' And his rawyer is suppose to educate him on eachoption, the pluses and m,

decision. 
'-=veu orrq l'r-rluses¡ âûd help him maké that

Ir7hat happened here, the option, the optionthe primary option that reso.r_ves 95 percent of ar_l cases,nationalfy, was not. provided to him. He didn, t reallyhave an optì-on in this case. And that,s where the probr-em-l-ies. Again, it,s a 17_year_old who hthe 
v¿q wrre nas no experience in

THB COURT: I meanr isn,f this the cl-ass or typeof cases though, r agree¡ ât one far end of the spect.rumof the typical_, what your expert says, is the type ofcases tried in BaÌtimore city, this is somewhat a-typical.
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I\4R. BROhIN: A_typicaL ?
THE COURT: Of the rurì of the mil-L murder case,and f hate characterlzing that vùay. ?hat there wouldn, tbe any plea negoLiatj_ons. O 17_year_o-Ld without anyprior, without any prior record, not drug re-l_atedr Ðotgang rel_ated. But a case like thisr lou know, the casewour-d be tried strictly on the defendant maintaining hisinnocence and thatrs the run of the case.

MR. BROWN: But what ir4s. Meade has testified toand' you know' she has been admitted as an expert incriminal- defense in BaLtimore CiLy, is that there is aduty to go out and find out what that offer is. And, inparticul-ar, after there had been a mistrial. Ms. Murphyread the quote from the bond hearing after the firstmistrial_. Those were the words of Ms. Gutier Tez. Thosearen't the words of Mr. Syed.
So, we think these cases establish that duty andthis is, this is a cognizabl_e issue on pos t-convi ction .THE COURT: Thank your Mr. Brown.

MR. BROhiN: Thank you, your Honor.
THE COUR?: The Court

ruling sub curia and issue a wri
And, Counsel_, I do thank you for
J'm surprise we were able to get
that. we had. So, thank you.

rs going to hold its
tten opinion. Thank you.
your schedul_e being
it done in the two days
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MR. BROüIN: Thank you¡ your Honor.MS. MURpHy: Thank you, your Honor.(Off the record 4 :37 :34 p . m. )
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TRANSCRTBER, S CERTTFICATE

This is to certify that the proceedings in the.matter of Adnan Syed versus State of MaryJ-and, Case Number199103042-046, and post_Conviction 
No. 10432, heard in theCircuit Court for Bal_timore City on October 25, 2012, wasrecorded on digital media with video.

f hereby certify that the proceedings, hereincontained were transcribed by me or under my direction.That said transcript is a Lrue and accurate record to the

Ï::.:: 
-r abirirv and constirures rhe officiar- rranscripr

fn witness thereof, f have hereunto subscribedmy name on this gth day of March, 2013.

Sherry R. Miller, president
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